
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 

June 26, 2018 
 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for June 26, 2018 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published June 21, 2018 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Tuesday, Jun 26 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council 

Thursday, Jun 28 at 6:30p.m. 
Transit Task Force 

Tuesday, Jul 3 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission 

Wednesday, Jul 4 
Independence Day – City 
Offices Closed 

Thursday, Jul 5 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation 
Commission 

Tuesday, Jul 10 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council 

Monday, Jul 16 at 4:00p.m. 
Joint Government Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (06/12/18) 
 Claims 
 May Revenues 
 May Treasurer’s Report 
 Liquor Licenses 

o Tin Roost (renewal) 
o Casey’s – Kansas Avenue (renewal) 
o El Cactus Mexican (transfer) 

 Pay Application #1, Kansas Avenue Rise Project, Streb  
Construction Company Inc., $159,299.58 

 Pay Application 14#, Phase I Water Improvements Project  
Division III: Wells, Gingerich Well and Pump Service.,  
$142,437.39 

 Change Order #2, Trail Connections Project, All American  
Concrete Inc., $7,442.94 

 Tobacco Permits 
o J & A Tap 
o LD Express 
o Liberty View Wine and Spirit 
o Gasby’s 
o Casey’s General Store #2788 
o Casey’s General Store #2479 
o The Depot North Liberty 
o Fareway Stores 
o Smokin’ Joe’s Tobacco & Liquor Outlet 
o Walgreens 
o Johncy’s Liquor Store 
o Kum & Go 

The Preserve Rezoning Request 
This request is to rezone property to permit the development of single-
family, duplex and multi-family lots typical in many North Liberty 
neighborhoods. A Good Neighbor meeting was held to allow any 
interested party an opportunity to comment on this rezoning prior to 
submission, and four resident households attended. Various concerns 



published June 21, 2018 •page 2 
 

were expressed, including storm water management, grading issues, and street extensions into adjacent 
property. Zoning surrounding and in the vicinity of the site includes ID, Public (Centennial Park), RS-4, 
and RS-6, and this proposal includes a mix of lot types and sizes consistent with other areas of North 
Liberty. Kansas Avenue is a minor arterial in the major street system, and St. Andrews Drive is a collector 
street. The property is shown as “residential” on the Land Use Plan, and so the request is consistent with 
that policy. A preliminary plat showing how streets can be developed within the proposal area has been 
submitted for consideration by the Planning Commission at their July meeting. Additional technical 
information can be found in the staff report (included in the packet) and I would encourage you to view the 
Planning Commission meeting video of the June meeting (link below), as they had a very good discussion 
about a number of different issues.  Staff and Commission, on a 4-3 vote, recommend approval of the 
proposed rezoning.  

https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/meetings/planning-and-zoning-for-june-5-2018/ 

Last, developer Gary Watts will present a brief overview of projects he has done in North Liberty and the 
metro area, and will be able to answer general and specific questions about development. 

NCJH Amended Site Plan 
This request from the Iowa City Community School District to approve a revised site plan for the existing 
North Central Junior High provides for additional classroom and gymnasium space, as well as additional 
parking.   Traffic issues are ongoing at all of the metro schools, including North Central. School district 
forecasts show that an additional 248 students may attend North Central when its service area is totally 
built out, which is likely to take quite a number of years. In order to better identify the existing and future 
traffic issues, and to recommend options for improvement, City and School staffs have met several times, 
and ICCSD representatives attended the Planning Commission meeting to comment.  Since the time of 
that meeting, the school district has developed a new and significant plan to better control traffic on site, 
and that is included in the packet.  

The design of the additions is an attractive modern style with very high masonry content, numerous wall 
offsets, and roof variety matching the existing building. 

Salary Resolution  
A resolution authorizing salaries for fiscal year 2018, as discussed during the budget process and guided 
by the recently revised compensation program, is on the agenda. This year’s cost of living increase is 
2.75%, while the step increase for those employees who are eligible is 2.45%. Police officer salaries are 
also included in the resolution and reflect what was approved in the collective bargaining agreement, 
which includes a 2.75% cost of living increase, plus a step increase for eligible officers. The salaries in 
the resolution will go in effect on July 1, 2018. 

Blues & BBQ Special Event Permit 
The Blues and BBQ Committee is requesting use of Centennial Park the weekend of July 14 for the 2018 
event, which will mark 12 years of this celebration. In addition to approving the use of the park, the 
resolution is approving the use of City equipment, property and staff time. Additional information about 
this year’s event can be found at http://northlibertyblues.org/.  Staff recommends approval of the permit. 

Trafficware Agreement 
Staff is recommending approval of an agreement with Trafficware Group Inc., which is the company that 
will be providing the adaptive signal control technology for the City’s traffic signals.  Several meetings ago 
the City Council approved an agreement with the IDOT stating that they (IDOT) will pay for these 



published June 21, 2018 •page 3 
 

technology improvements.  The enclosed agreement specifically identifies the scope of work to be 
provided by the Trafficware Group so that all parties understand and agree to the proposed 
improvements. 

Forevergreen Road Easement 
The IDOT is negotiating with property owners along Forevergreen Road for easements and acquisitions 
for the upcoming road project. While the IDOT is the project lead and initially funding this project, 
acquisition and easement costs will eventually be the responsibility of the City, thus require Council 
approval. The easement on the agenda is for property owned by Hodge Construction at the corner of 
Forevergreen Road and Jones Boulevard in the amount of $3,020 (plus $150 for recording costs). Staff 
recommends approval of the easement.  

Water & Sewer Rate Ordinances, 3rd and Final Reading 
At the January budget work sessions, staff and Council discussed the potential for water and sewer rate 
increases as a result of the capital projects being completed in both utilities.  Fiscal year 18 utility 
revenues have come in as projected and expenses less than projected; however, despite these 
projections, staff is recommending a rate increase for both water and sewer.  Included in the packet is an 
updated model for the water and sewer funds, showing a 3% increase in sewer and 3.5% increase in 
water, respectively 1% and 1.5% less than what was discussed at our budget work sessions in February.   

When evaluating rates two main variables are considered:  

1. Fund Balances.  The goal is to keep a fund balance of 25%.  In the model, both funds drop below 
that at some point in time, but bounce back within a few years. 

2. Debt Service Coverage.  Revenue bonds require debt service coverage of 1.20.  At no point in 
time in either model does the debt service coverage drop below the required 1.20. 

Rate increases are never desirable; however we must ensure the integrity of the fund balances and meet 
the requirements of the loan agreements.  Considering both of these issues, staff recommends the 
proposed rate increases.   

Dog Park Land Purchase Agreement 
Included in the packet is a purchase agreement for approximately 11.5 acres of land for a future dog park, 
located at the curve and on the north east side of North Liberty Road.  As previously discussed, the 
purchase agreement is in the amount of $200,000 with a closing date of August 1.  Attached to the 
agreement is an exhibit generally identifying the described property and prior to closing a survey will be 
completed and a legal description created.  Staff recommends approval of the purchase agreement.  

 

 

 



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: June 22, 2018 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 
 
 
of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

Agenda 

North Liberty City Council 
June 26, 2018 

Regular Session 
6:30 p.m. 

City Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

 
1. Call to order   

 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, June 12, 2018 
B. Claims 
C. May Revenues 
D. May Treasurer Report 
E. Kansas Avenue RISE Project, Pay Application Number 1, Streb Construction Co., Inc., 

$159,299.58 
F. Phase I Water System Improvements Division 3, Pay Application Number 14, Gingerich Well & 

Pump Service, $26,972.88 
G. Trail Project, Change Order Number 2, All American Concrete, $7,442.94 
H. Liquor License Renewal, Tin Roost 
I. Liquor License Renewal, Casey’s – Kansas 
J. Liquor License Transfer, El Cactus Mexican Restaurant 
K. Liquor License Application, Tin Roost, Special Event Permit, June 30, 2018 
L. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for J & A Tap 
M. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for LD Express 
N. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Liberty View 

Wine & Spirit 
O. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for The Station II 

LLC 
P. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Gasby’s 
Q. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Casey’s General 

Store #2788, 595 N. Kansas Avenue 
R. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Casey’s General 

Store #2479, 625 W. Zeller Street  



City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: June 22, 2018 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 2of Nor 
 
h Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa 
 

S. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for The Depot 
North Liberty LLC  

T. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Fareway Stores, 
Inc. #993 

U. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Smokin’ Joe’s 
Tobacco & Liquor Outlet #12 

V. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Walgreens 
#11710 

W. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Johncy’s Liquor 
Store 

X. FY 2019 Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Kum & Go #507 
 

5. Public Comment 
 

6. City Planner Report 
 

7. City Engineer Report  
 

8. City Attorney Report  
 

9. Assistant City Administrator Report 
 

10. City Administrator Report  
 

11. Mayor Report  
 

12. Rezoning – The Preserve 
A. Public Hearing regarding proposed rezoning 
B. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2018-07, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of 

the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on property owned by 
Watts Group located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for 
various residential zoning districts 
 

13. North Central Junior High Site Plan 
A. Staff & Commission recommendations 
B. Applicant presentation 
C. Resolution Number 2018-89, A Resolution approving the Development Site Plan for North 

Central Junior High School, North Liberty, Iowa  
 

14. Salary Resolution 
A. Resolution Number 2018-96, A Resolution authorizing salaries and hourly wages for City 

employees for the Fiscal Year of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 
 

15. Blues and BBQ Special Event Permit 
A. Resolution Number 2018-97, A Resolution authorizing the use of Centennial Park and city 

equipment for North Liberty Blues and BBQ 
 



City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: June 22, 2018 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 3of Nor 
 
h Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa 
 

16. Adaptive Signal Control Agreement 
A. Resolution Number 2018-99, A Resolution approving the Services Agreement between Traffic 

and Transportation Products, Limited and the City of North Liberty  
 

17. Forevergreen Road Project  
A. Resolution Number 2018-98, A Resolution approving the Temporary Easement Purchase 

Agreement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—OE-52) 
 

18. Water Rates 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2018-05, An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 92.02 entitled “Rates for Service” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty by adopting 
a new Section 92.02 to increase the charges for water used  
 

19. Sewer Rates 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2018-06, An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 99.02 entitled “Rate,” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty by adopting a new 
section 99.02 to increase the charges for sanitary sewer services  

 
20. Dog Park Land Purchase Agreement 

A. Resolution Number 2018-100, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement for the Dog 
Park Project  

 
21. Corporate Boundary Line Adjustment 

A. Resolution Number 2018-101, A Resolution adjusting Corporate Boundary Line between the 
City of North Liberty, Iowa and Johnson County, Iowa  

22. Old Business 
 
23. New Business 

 
24. Adjournment 
 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2018                    
Page: 1 
 
 
of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

Minutes (Not official until approved by the City Council) 
North Liberty City Council 

June 12, 2018 
Regular Session 

City Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

Call to order   
At 6:30 p.m., Mayor Terry Donahue called the June 12, 2018 Regular Session of the North Liberty 
City Council to order.  Councilors present: Jennifer Goings, Chris Hoffman, Annie Pollock and Jim 
Sayre; absent:  Sarah Madsen. 
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Kevin Trom, Dean Wheatley, Evan 
Runkle, Deb Hilton, Guy Goldsmith, Shelly Simpson and other interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Pollock moved, Goings seconded to approve the agenda with removal of the Addendum to 
Agreement (Harold Cameron). The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including City Council Minutes 
from the Regular Session on May 22, 2018; the attached list of Claims; the Liquor License 
Application for Mosley’s; the Liquor License Renewal for Smokin’ Joe’s; the Liquor License Renewal 
for Kum N Go; the Liquor License Application for Iowa Craft Beer for Blues and BBQ on July 14; Pay 
Application Number 3 for the Front Street Improvements Project to Dave Schmitt Construction in 
the amount of $386,225.31; Change Order Number 1 for the Trail Improvements Project to All 
American Concrete, Inc. in the amount of $4,620.09; Pay Application Number 2 for the Trail 
Improvements Project to All American Concrete, Inc. in the amount of $214,244.09; Change Order 
Number 12 for the Phase 1 Water System Improvements Division 1 – Water Treatment Plant to 
Portzen Construction, Inc. in the amount of $37,759.00; Pay Application Number 20 for the Phase 1 
Water System Improvements Division 1 – Water Treatment Plant to Portzen Construction, Inc. in 
the amount of $462,145.05; Change Order Number 1 for the Highway 965, Phase 3 Project to Streb 
Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,195.10; and Pay Application Number 2 for the Highway 
965, Phase 3 Project to Streb Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $628,694.72.  The vote was all 
ayes. Consent Agenda approved.  

 
Public Comment 
A resident on North Main Street shared concerns about traffic on North Main between Cherry and 
Dubuque including speeding, parking and streetlights.   
 
City Planner Report 



City of North Liberty – 2018                   
Page: 2of Nor 
 
h Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa 
 

City Planner Dean Wheatley reported that transit numbers were included in the Council packet.  
Council discussed the report with him. 
 
City Engineer Report  
City Engineer Trom reported that the water system projects are all substantially complete.  The 
Highway 965, Phase 3 eastside portion is almost complete. The project is on schedule. The Trail 
network project is substantially complete.  The Front Street Project is on schedule.  The Kansas 
Avenue RISE Project is underway.  The contractor on the sewer upgrades project is on schedule. 
The plan, tentatively, is to reopen Cherry Street on Monday. Council discussed the report with 
Trom.  

 
City Attorney Report  
City Attorney Peterson reported on the Council training tomorrow night.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Report 
Assistant City Administrator Mulcahey reported on Water Excise Tax, Summer Lunch and Fun 
Program, and Trash/Recycle transition. Council discussed the report with Mulcahey. 
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported on the trash and recycling transition. The Water Treatment Plant 
Community Open House is Wednesday, June 20 from 4 – 6 p.m. Centennial playground installation 
is underway. Creekside Park playground is being moved for the high pressure gas main project.  
 
Mayor Report  
Mayor Donahue reported that he received information regarding the rail traffic study. 

 
Highway 965, Phase Two Project  
Hoffman moved, Goings seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-95, A Resolution approving 
the Agreement between Horsfield Construction, Inc. and the City of North Liberty regarding the 
Highway 965, Phase Two Project.  The vote was: ayes – Sayre, Pollock, Goings, Hoffman; nays – 
none. Motion carried.  
 
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve Change Order Number 4 for Horsfield Construction, 
Inc. in the amount of $100,768.66. The vote was all ayes. Change order approved.  
 
Pollock moved, Hoffman seconded to approve Pay Application Number 10 for Horsfield 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $356,181.39. After discussion, the vote was all ayes. Pay 
application approved.  

 
I-380 Industrial Park, Lot 11 Site Plan 
Wheatley reported that staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the site plan 
application with no conditions. Council discussed the application with Wheatley.  
 
 Ben Mitchell, MMS Consultants, was present on behalf of the applicant and offered to answer 
questions.  
 
Sayre moved, Hoffman seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-88, A Resolution approving 
the development site plan for Lot 11, I-380 Industrial Park, North Liberty, Iowa.  The vote was: ayes 
– Pollock, Hoffman, Goings, Sayre; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 



City of North Liberty – 2018                   
Page: 3of Nor 
 
h Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa 
 

Board and Commission Appointments 
Mayor Donahue presented his board and commission appointments effective July 1, 2018.   
• Planning and Zoning:  Kylie Pentecost; Patrick Staber (Both Incumbents) 
• Board of Adjustment: Lance Murphy and Robert Strickland 
• Communications Advisory Board.: D. Ryan Bevins and Thomas Wells (Both Incumbents) 
• Cemetery Board: Kate Karacay  (Incumbent) 
• Tree/Stormwater:  Ben Curtis 
• Parks and Recreation Commission:  Megan Lehman (Incumbent); Amalia Gedney-Lose; Jerry 

Schimmel 
Hoffman moved, Goings seconded to approve the appointments. After discussion, the vote was all 
ayes. Appointments approved. 
 
Dog Park 
Heiar presented information regarding on land purchase for dog park.  He requested considering 
reallocating funding in FY 18 budget from trail lighting to park land purchase.  Hoffman moved, 
Pollock seconded to take the actions necessary for land purchase for the dog park.  The vote was all 
ayes. Motion carried.  Jake Villhauer presented a $50,000 donation from the Johnson County Dog 
PAC.  
 
Recreation Center Fees 
Heiar and Simpson presented information regarding fees. Council discussed the proposal with staff.  
Hoffman moved, Goings seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-90, A Resolution approving 
the Recreation Fee Structure.  Hoffman moved, Pollock seconded to amend the resolution with free 
track usage for next year for North Liberty residents.  Hoffman retracted his amendment.  Hoffman 
moved, Goings seconded to amend the resolution with a free option with staff identifying the 
process for free usage.  The vote was: ayes – Goings, Hoffman; nays – Sayre, Pollock. Amendment 
failed.  Pollock moved to amend the resolution to include track usage is free for North Liberty 
residents.  Sayre seconded.  The vote was: ayes- Sayre, Pollock; nays – Goings, Hoffman.  
Amendment failed. After discussion, the vote was on Resolution Number 2018-90 was: ayes – none; 
nays - Hoffman, Sayre, Goings, Pollock. Motion failed.   
 
Compensation System 
Heiar and Hilton presented information regarding the updated compensation program. Council 
discussed the program.  Goings moved, Sayre seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-91, A 
Resolution approving the Compensation Program.  The vote was: ayes – Goings, Hoffman, Sayre, 
Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Wood River Energy 
Heiar presented information regarding the agreement. Pollock moved, Hoffman seconded to 
approve Resolution Number 2018-93, A Resolution approving the Natural Gas Sales Agreement 
between WoodRiver Energy, LLC and the City of North Liberty, Iowa regarding the City’s natural 
gas purchases for certain facilities.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Goings, Sayre, 
Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.  
  
Parking Update – Vandello Circle 
Wheatley presented information regarding the proposed parking update. Goings moved, Hoffman 
seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-94, A Resolution approving Parking Control Devices 
in the City of North Liberty, Iowa.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes- Hoffman, Pollock, Sayre, 
Goings; nays – none. Motion carried.   



City of North Liberty – 2018                   
Page: 4of Nor 
 
h Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa 
 

Solid Waste Ordinance 
Pollock moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2018-04, An Ordinance amending Chapters 105 and 106 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapters related to Solid Waste Control and Collection. The vote was: ayes 
– Pollock, Goings, Sayre, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Water Rates 
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 2018-
05, An Ordinance amending Chapter 92.02 entitled “Rates for Service” of the Municipal Code of 
North Liberty by adopting a new Section 92.02 to increase the charges for water used.  After 
discussion, the vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Sayre, Pollock, Goings; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Sewer Rates 
Hoffman moved, Goings seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 2018-
06, An Ordinance amending Chapter 99.02 entitled “Rate,” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty 
by adopting a new section 99.02 to increase the charges for sanitary sewer services.  The vote was: 
ayes – Goings, Sayre, Pollock, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Old Business 
Heiar reported on the number of employees at the top of the range.  
 
New Business 
Councilor Pollock encouraged applications for CLP. Wheatley offered that a rezoning will be on the 
next agenda. The applicant will be here to make a presentation about development generally. He 
encouraged Council to bring their questions. 
 
Adjournment 
At  7:56p.m., Mayor Donahue adjourned the meeting. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
By:  ____________________________________________ 
        Terry L. Donahue, Mayor    Attest: 

 

 

       ___________________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 



 
                          MAY 31ST, 2018
 
                                         MONTH-TO-DATE   YEAR-TO-DATE
                                            BALANCE         BALANCE
________________________________________________________________________
  010-GENERAL FUND                         555,109.67   10,817,996.56
  011-FIRE EQUIPMENT CAPITA                      0.00       41,347.04
  012-LIBRARY CAPITAL FUND                     655.62       11,581.59
  013-RECREATION CAPITAL FU                      0.00            0.00
  014-POLICE CAPITAL FUND                   11,935.62       28,356.85
  015-TRANSPORTATION IMPACT                      0.00      172,059.33
  016-STORMWATER IMPACT FEE                      0.00            0.00
  017-TREE PROGRAM                             168.35        1,168.35
  018-PARK CAPITAL FUND                        425.00      147,556.15
  019-YOUTH SPORTS SCHOLARS                    658.79       18,232.72
  020-EQUIPMENT REVOLVING                       97.68       18,578.45
  021-TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQ                      0.00        1,341.25
  022-LIBRARY TAG                                0.00            0.00
  023-LIBRARY ENDOWMENT                          0.00            0.00
  024-DRUG TASK FORCE                          187.92          751.68
  025-POLICE SEIZED FUNDS                    3,648.00        3,665.03
  026-HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                       12,697.83       81,315.61
  060-ROAD USE TAX FUND                    219,798.17    2,154,946.10
  061-STREET CAPITAL PROJEC                      0.00    1,119,895.69
  062-IJOBS STREETS                              0.00            0.00
  090-TIF FUND                             205,439.59    4,055,346.13
  110-DEBT SERVICE FUND                     29,295.97      881,037.05
  210-TRUST AND AGENCY                      52,198.66    1,725,818.45
  280-CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                     11,490.00      145,370.00
  310-COMMUNITY CENTER II C                      0.00            0.00
  311-FRONT STREET RECONSTR                      0.00            0.00
  312-CHERRY STREET RECONST                      0.00            0.00
  313-TIF PROJECTS                               0.00            0.00
  314-ENTRYWAY DEVELOPMENT                       0.00            0.00
  315-HIGHWAY 965 IMPROVEME                      0.00        5,000.00
  316-COMMUNITY CENTER PHAS                      0.00            0.00
  317-TRAIL PROJECTS                             0.00            0.00
  318-EC DEVELOPMENT PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  319-PENN STREET IMPROVEME                      0.00      815,550.00
  320-LIBERTY CENTER PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  321-LAND/FACILITIES                            0.00            0.00
  322-LIBRARY BUILDING FUND                     10.52        8,115.57
  323-LIBERTY CENTRE BLUES/                      0.00            0.00
  324-RANSHAW HOUSE PROJECT                      0.00            0.00
  510-WATER FUND                           324,695.10    3,417,166.20
  511-WATER CAPITAL RESERVE                      0.00            0.00
  512-WATER SINKING FUND                   101,095.58    1,112,051.38
  513-WATER BOND RESERVE                         0.00            0.00
  514-WATER CAPITAL PROJECT              3,096,673.83   11,024,943.60
  520-SEWER FUND                           386,452.16    4,118,897.05
  521-SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE                 17,125.00      230,979.10
  522-SEWER SINKING FUND                   183,967.75    2,023,645.25
  523-WASTEWATER TREATMENT                       0.00      797,440.06
  524-SEWER TRUNK AND I&I                        0.00      262,421.00
  525-SEWER DEBT SERVICE RE                      0.00            0.00
  530-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT                 18,206.00      256,117.52
  532-STORMWATER SINKING FU                      0.00            0.00
________________________________________________________________________

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE                      5,232,032.81   45,498,690.76



05/01/2018 05/31/2018

GENERAL 7,225,232.70 583,861.29 -926,752.50 6,882,341.49

SPECIAL REVENUE 9,249,755.00 477,436.42 -72,931.10 9,654,260.32

DEBT SERVICE 753,136.49 29,295.97 0.00 782,432.46

CAPITAL PROJECTS -3,273,826.40 10.52 -883,003.06 -4,156,818.94

WATER ENTERPRISE 2,310,747.37 3,509,740.66 -554,512.20 5,265,975.83

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 6,529,901.64 568,451.22 -332,041.74 6,766,311.12

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 258,266.20 17,929.27 -13,258.96 262,936.51

TOTAL 23,053,213.00 5,186,725.35 -2,782,499.56 25,457,438.79

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY

TREASURER'S REPORT

May 31, 2018

BALANCE 
FORWARD BALANCE ENDINGREVENUE EXPENSEFUNDS









EJCDC® C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment
© 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved.

Page 1 of 6

Contractor's Application for Payment No.
Application Period: Application Date:

To From (Contractor): Via (Engineer):

(Owner):

Project: Contract:

Owner's Contract No.: Contractor's Project No.: Engineer's Project No.:

1.  ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE.......................................................... $

2.  Net change by Change Orders................................................................ $

3.  Current Contract Price (Line 1 ± 2)....................................................... $

4.  TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE

     (Column F total on Progress Estimates)................................................. $

5.  RETAINAGE:

a. 5% X $2,848,757.71 Work Completed.......... $

b. 5% X Stored Material............ $

c. Total Retainage (Line 5.a + Line 5.b)............................ $

6.  AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5.c)........................... $

7.  LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 6 from prior Application)........ $

8.  AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION................................................. $

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE

    (Column G total on Progress Estimates + Line 5.c above)..................... $

Contractor's Certification

   Payment of: $

   is recommended by:

   Payment of: $

   is approved by:

Contractor Signature

By: Date:    Approved by:

Fox Engineering Associates

3373-15A

6/18/2018 6/18/2018

$142,437.89

Application For Payment

Change Order Summary

Number
1

Deductions

City of North Liberty                                                 3 
Quail Creek Circle                                                      
North Liberty, IA 52317 Gingerich Well & Pump Service

$14,892.51

CHANGE ORDERS

NET CHANGE BY -$31,336.29

$33,942.51TOTALS

$2,706,319.82

$142,437.89

(Engineer)

$65,278.80

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

$2,679,346.94

$26,972.88

$142,437.89

(Date)

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

(Date)

Funding or Financing Entity (if applicable) (Date)

(Owner)

Phase I-Water System Improvements                         
Division III-Well Construction and Rehabilitation

FS-52-14-DWSRF-020

2 $65,278.80

$2,848,757.713

14

Jill Williams-Gingerich Well & Pump Service 6/18/2018

City of North Liberty Phase I-Water System 
Improvements Division III-Well Construction 
and Rehabilitation

Additions
$19,050.00

$2,880,094.00

-$31,336.29

$2,848,757.71

Approved Change Orders

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the following:
(1) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract 
have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with 
the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment;
(2) Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, or otherwise listed in or 
covered by this Application for Payment, will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all 
Liens, security interests, and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to Owner 
indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and
(3) All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents 
and is not defective.

26,972.88

6/19/2018





License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: TRNL, LLC

Name of Business (DBA): Tin Roost

Address of Premises: 840 W Penn St

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 626-2331

Mailing 840 W Penn St

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name Erik Shewmaker

Phone: (319) 626-2331 Email erikshewmaker@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Effective Date: 07/21/2018

Expiration Date: 07/20/2019

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Catering Privilege

Class B Wine Permit

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Outdoor Service

Sunday Sales

Lane Shewmaker

First Name: Lane Last Name: Shewmaker

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52245

Position: Partner

% of Ownership: 25.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Brian Flynn

First Name: Brian Last Name: Flynn

City: Coralville State: Iowa Zip: 52241

Position: Partner

% of Ownership: 25.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Brandon Pratt

 LC0043624 



Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 07/21/2018 Policy Expiration 07/21/2019

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Secura Insurance Company

First Name: Brandon Last Name: Pratt

City: North Liberty State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: Partner

% of Ownership: 25.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Joe Selix

First Name: Joe Last Name: Selix

City: North Liberty State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: Partner

% of Ownership: 25.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 
                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 
  June 3, 2018 

 

Liquor License Check 

 

Business:  Tin Roost Restaurant  

        840 W. Penn Street 

                      North Liberty, IA  52317 

   
Owners:  Lane Shewmaker  (DOB: 1983) 
  Brian Flynn  (DOB: 1975) 
   Brandon Pratt  (DOB: 1981) 
  Joe Selix    (DOB: 1985) 
 

 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or business related to their liquor license. 

  I recommend the license be granted. 

 

This record check was conducted on 6/3/2018 by Sergeant Chris Shine.    

 

 

   





City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Tin Roost
Tin Roost
840 W. Penn Street North Liberty IA
319-626-2133 management@tinroost.com

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, 
ou=Building Safety, email=tpalmer@ci.north-
liberty.ia.us, c=US 
Date: 2018.05.15 08:04:02 -05'00'





Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 6/15/2018 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 09:59 Time Out: 09:59
Authorized Date: Not Authorized By:

Occupancy: TIN ROOST
Occupancy ID: 995218

Address: 840 W Penn ST
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Fire Extinguishers

Fire Extinguisher Monthly Inspection - Initial & Date Tag

Status: FAIL
Notes: - complete.

NFPA 10: Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers, 2013 Edition, Section 7.2.1.2 Fire extinguishers and Class D extinguishing agents shall be visually 
inspected at intervals not exceeding 31 days. Documentation of the visual inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) 
or on a log book.

Fire Extinguisher Unobstructed & Unobscured

Status: FAIL
Notes: - kitchen. Fire extinguisher and pull stations shall not be obstructed or obscured from view.

906.6 Unobstructed and unobscured. Portable fire extinguishers shall not be obstructed or obscured from view. In rooms or areas in which visual obstruction 
cannot be completely avoided, means shall be provided to indicate the locations of extinguishers.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 07/15/2018 Reinspection

Page 1 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Emergency Lights & Exit Signs

Exit Signs - Illumination

Status: FAIL
Notes: - side dining room & front entrance. Exit sign did not appear to illuminate when tested.

1013.3 Illumination. Exit signs shall be internally or externally illuminated. 1013.5 Internally illuminated exit signs. Electrically powered, self-luminous and 
photoluminescent exit signs shall be listed and labeled in accordance with UL 924 and shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions 
and Section 604. Exit signs shall be illuminated at all times.

Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Equipment - 3 Feet Clearance in Front of Panel

Status: FAIL
Notes: - remove all storage in electrical room.

605.3 Working space and clearance. A working space of not less than 30 inches in width, 36 inches in depth and 78 inches in height shall be provided in front 
of electrical service equipment. Where the electrical service equipment is wider than 30 inches, the working space shall be not less than the width of the 
equipment. Storage of materials shall not be located within the designated working space.

Page 2 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Fire Alarm System

Manual Pull Station Accessible & Unobstructed

Status: FAIL
Notes: - remove all storage. Blocking access to fire alarm panel and pull station.

907.4.2.6 Unobstructed and unobscured. Manual fire alarm boxes shall be accessible, unobstructed, unobscured and visible at all times.

Kitchen Hood System

Kitchen Hood and Duct Cleaned- Current Inspection Tag on Hood 

Status: FAIL
Notes: - Do not have a record of bi-annual hood cleaning since opening. Contact hood cleaning to submit report.

609.3.3.1 Inspection. Hoods, grease-removal devices, fans, ducts and other appurtenances shall be inspected at intervals specified in Table 609.3.3.1 or as 
approved by the fire code official. Inspections shall be completed by qualified individuals.

Page 3 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Cooking Equipment with Casters in Approved Floor Mounted Restraining Device

Status: FAIL
Notes: - ensure all cooking equipment on casters are secured to wall with cable. Floor mounted wheel holders are also 
required.

Section 609.4 Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining 
device and flexible gas connector installed in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Interior Finish/Flame Spread

Interior Finish Maintained

Status: FAIL
Notes: - acoustic tiles were added after fire department acceptance. Will need flame & smoke spread rating for material to 
ensure compliance with flammability.

803.1 General. The provisions of this section shall limit the allowable fire performance and smoke development of interior wall and ceiling finishes and interior 
wall and ceiling trim in existing buildings based on location and occupancy classification.

Page 4 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Proper Ceiling Clearance - 18"/24"

Status: FAIL
Notes: - reduce storage on these shelves at least 18 inches from ceiling/ sprinkle deflector.

315.3.1 Ceiling clearance. Storage shall be maintained 2 feet or more below the ceiling in non-sprinklered areas of buildings or not less than 18 inches below 
sprinkler head deflectors in sprinklered areas of buildings.

Oily Rags Stored in Approved Containers

Status: FAIL
Notes: -used rag storage for kitchen cleaning will need to be in a non combustible container with lid. Other cleaning rags can 
be stored in existing bins.

304.3.1 Spontaneous ignition. Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such 
containers shall be removed and disposed of daily.

Page 5 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 0 minutes
Inspection Time: 0 minutes

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG 

Compressed Gas Cylinders Secured or Chained

Status: FAIL
Notes: - ensure all cylinders are secured. Add second eye hook.

5303.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be secured to prevent falling 
caused by contact, vibration or seismic activity. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be by one of the following methods: 1. 
Securing containers, cylinders and tanks to a fixed object with one or more restraints. 2. Securing containers, cylinders and tanks on a cart or other mobile 
device designed for the movement of compressed gas containers, cylinders or tanks. 3. Nesting of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks at 
container filling or servicing facilities or in sellers’ warehouses not accessible to the public. Nesting shall be allowed provided the nested containers, cylinders 
or tanks, if dislodged, do not obstruct the required means of egress. 4. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks to or within a rack, 
framework, cabinet or similar assembly designed for such use. Exception: Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks in the process of examination, 
filling, transport or servicing.

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: N/A
Notes: - General reminder. Ensure outdoor patio umbrella when fully opened are at least the distance away required by 
manufacturer to the fixed patio heaters. Move if needed. Umbrellas were in the stored position during inspection.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Page 6 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 06/15/2018 10:05

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Kelsey Boyles on 06/15/2018 11:14

Page 7 of 7Printed on 06/15/18 at 11:14:50



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: CASEY'S MARKETING 

Name of Business (DBA): CASEY'S GENERAL STORE #2788

Address of Premises: 595 N KANSAS AVE

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 665-6030

Mailing PO Box 3001

City Ankeny Zip: 500218045

)

Contact Person

Name JESSICA FISHER, Store Operations

Phone: (515) 446-6404 Email JESSICA.FISHER@caseys.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Publicly Traded Corporation

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Effective Date: 07/15/2018

Expiration Date: 07/14/2019

Classification Class E Liquor License (LE)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class B Native Wine Permit

Class C Beer Permit (Carryout Beer)

Class E Liquor License (LE)

Sunday Sales

42-0935283 CASEY'S GENERAL 
STORES INCFirst Name: 42-0935283 Last Name: CASEY'S GENERAL STORES, INC.

City: ANKENY State: Iowa Zip: 50021-804

Position: OWNER

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

MICHAEL RICHARDSON

First Name: MICHAEL Last Name: RICHARDSON

City: PLEASANT HILL State: Iowa Zip: 50327

Position: PRESIDENT

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

JULIA L. JACKOWSKI

First Name: JULIA L. Last Name: JACKOWSKI

 LE0001945 



Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 07/15/2018 Policy Expiration 01/01/1900

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 2

Insurance Company: Merchants Bonding Company

City: URBANDALE State: Iowa Zip: 50322

Position: SECRETARY

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

James Pistillo

First Name: James Last Name: Pistillo

City: Urbandale State: Iowa Zip: 50323

Position: Treasurer

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

JOHN SOUPENE

First Name: JOHN Last Name: SOUPENE

City: ANKENY State: Iowa Zip: 50023

Position: VICE-PRESIDENT

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 
                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 
June 3, 2018 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Casey’s General Store #2788 
    595 N. Kansas Ave 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owners:  Michael Richardson  (DOB: 1956)  
    John Soupene    (DOB: 1968) 
    Julia L. Jackowski  (DOB: 1966) 
    James Pistillo    (DOB: 1971)                  
 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owners or calls for service related to their liquor license.   
 
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   



City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

   
Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

  

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Casey's General Store #2788

595 N. Kansas Avenue North Liberty IA
319-965-6572





Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 6/15/2018 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 09:10 Time Out: 09:10
Authorized Date: Not Authorized By:

Occupancy: Casey's General Store (Kansas Ave.)
Occupancy ID: HAND01

Address: 595 N Kansas AVE Building #610402001
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Fire Extinguishers

Fire Extinguisher Unobstructed & Unobscured

Status: FAIL
Notes: - Fire extinguisher near main entrance / seating area is partially visually obstructed. Mount sign / sticker above with 
arrow pointing down to fire extinguisher, stating fire extinguisher.

906.6 Unobstructed and unobscured. Portable fire extinguishers shall not be obstructed or obscured from view. In rooms or areas in which visual obstruction 
cannot be completely avoided, means shall be provided to indicate the locations of extinguishers.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 07/15/2018 Reinspection

Page 1 of 3Printed on 06/15/18 at 09:46:48



Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Panels, Junction Boxes & Outlet Boxes - No Openings or Exposed Wiring

Status: FAIL
Notes: - above seating area replace outlet cover.

605.6 Unapproved conditions. Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for all switch and electrical 
outlet boxes.

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: FAIL
Notes: - Reove with turn unlock knob and lock to all walk-in coolers & freezers. Not allowed due to turn & twisting of knob and 
that it requires special knowledge to operate.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG 

Propane Resale - No Propane Cylinders Into Building Signage

Status: FAIL
Notes: -Obtain signage from propane company and add to front door, visible from outside.

6109.15 LP-gas cylinder exchange for resale. A sign shall be posted on the entry door of the business operating the cylinder exchange stating “DO NOT 
BRING LP-GAS CYLINDERS INTO THE BUILDING” or similar approved wording.

Page 2 of 3Printed on 06/15/18 at 09:46:48



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 0 minutes
Inspection Time: 0 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 06/15/2018 09:12

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Joshua Nauss on 06/15/2018 09:46

Page 3 of 3Printed on 06/15/18 at 09:46:48





























 

 
 

Watts Rezoning 
 



 
May 31, 2018 
 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Request from the Watts Group to approve residential rezoning for property located at the 
southeast corner of Kansas Avenue and St. Andrews Drive.  

(Legal: NW1/4, SW1/4 and NE1/4, SW1/4 Section 14-80-7; except Devers Subdivision) 

Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 

Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
Background and Statistics 
 
This request is to rezone property to permit the development of single-family, duplex and multi-
family lots typical in many North Liberty neighborhoods. A Good Neighbor meeting was held to allow 
any interested party an opportunity to comment on this rezoning prior to submission, and four 
resident households attended. Various concerns were expressed, including storm water 
management, grading issues, and street extensions into adjacent property. As can be seen on the 
zoning map inset, zoning surrounding and in the vicinity of the site includes ID, Public (Centennial 
Park), RS-4, and RS-6, a good mix consistent with other areas of North Liberty and with good 
planning for a mix of housing type opportunities. Kansas Avenue is a minor arterial in the major 
street system, and St. Andrews Drive is a collector street.   
 
The property is shown as “residential” on the Land Use Plan, and so the request is consistent with 
that policy. A concept plan has been developed showing how streets can be developed within the 
proposal area. 
 
Existing housing unit counts within North Liberty are approximately: 
Single-family: 2,738 (37.6%) 
Multi-family: 2,536 (34.8%) 
Duplex: 1,271 (17.4%) 
Res/Commercial: 213 (3%) 
Mobile Home: 531(7.3%) 
 

dwheatley
Text Box
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning at their meeting on 6/5/2018, but subject to amending the district areas to those shown in the last exhibit in this staff report, the developer's compromise to the original staff recommendation, where one-half block of duplex zoning is instead rezoned to single-family and a one-lot-depth area west of the St Andrews Drive westerly entrance is zoned for duplex lots instead of multi-family.



Subdivision Ordinance Provisions Affecting This Development 
 
Proposed corner lots should be larger than others, as recommended by the City to provide 
somewhat larger yards. Storm water management will need to be planned for the site.  
 
Zoning Ordinance Provisions Affecting This Development 
 

None identified. 
 
Staff Comments Regarding the Proposed Zoning 
 
Storm water impacts. Storm water from this site 
will need to be managed in accordance with City 
standards as part of the preliminary plat review and 
infrastructure construction. 
 
Street/Traffic impacts. Both Kansas Avenue and St. 
Andrews Drive are classified as major streets. 
Kansas Avenue is an arterial and St. Andrews Drive is 
a collector. Both will be adequate to accommodate 
new traffic resulting from this development. 
 
Land use impacts and adjacent properties. 
This proposal presents a logical transition in housing 
density from higher density near the major streets 
to lower density extending east and south. In 
addition, the proximity of this property to I-380 and 
expected non-residential development in the 
corridor between Kansas Avenue and the Interstate 

make the multi-family request reasonable and appropriate.  
 
Land use and zoning recommendation.  In rezoning 
considerations, suitability and compatibility are key 
issues in addition to land use policy. In this case, the site 
is physically suitable for the development proposed, 
and the zoning districts proposed are compatible with 
expected and planned development in the area. In 
particular, the City has encouraged and approved higher 
density development adjacent to arterial streets and I-
380, with a gradual transition to single-family as the 
distance from those streets increases; and this proposal 
does exactly that. Based only on the area of each 
zoning district, each of the zoning types proposed 
would contain the following maximum number of 
dwelling units. 



Type of 
Zoning 

Area 
Including 
ROW 

Approximate 
Number Units in 
Development 

Percent of Total Units in 
Development 

Percent Existing in 
North Liberty 
Overall 

Single-family 27.16 acres 78 25% 42% 

Duplex 16.82 acres 84 27% 19% 

Multi-family 27.52 acres 155* 49% 39% 

Percent Existing was calculated by using only the city-wide housing unit numbers for these same 
three uses proposed in this application.  

* This is an estimate of multi-family units. A specific number has not been provided by the developer 
and would be subject to review and approval of a specific site plan. 
 
Comparing the proposal to the existing housing unit counts in North Liberty, we see that the 
proportions of single-family units proposed is relatively low while the duplex and multi-family 
percentages are very high. Some points to consider regarding this: 
1. The location of this development area near the I-380 corridor makes it somewhat less appealing 
and less marketable for single-family development than locations farther away. 
2. Kansas Avenue is an arterial street that is planned to extend south beyond Forevergreen Road to 
Highway 6, and will likely carry significant amounts of traffic in the future. 
3. Market conditions. Demand is very high for duplex and multi-family development. 
4. Penetration east of the multi-family and duplex zoning sets a precedent for future development 
south of this site. While logically laid out, the non-single family extends an entire 1,320 feet east from 
Kansas, a full quarter-section. 
 
Other comments.  The exhibit below shows the public street layout proposed by the developer that 
is the basis for the rezoning request; however, approval of the rezoning is not approval of this 
particular street layout. The next step in the development process will be a preliminary plat 
application, assuming the rezoning is approved. If this street layout as shown is not approved in the 
plat process, adjustments will need to be made to the zoning districts to match the layout. This point 
needs to be made so that there is no assumption that approving the zoning will lock the City into this 
particular street layout. 
 

 



 
Overall, the housing type split proposed for this development is not representative of the city as a 
whole, but may be an appropriate mix for the location. Some positive points to consider are: 
1. The plan accomplishes the Land Use Plan goal of decreasing density as distance from arterial 
streets increases (RM-8 > RD-10 > RS-6 > RS-4). 
2. The plan concept proposes to locate storm water retention ponds to provide generous setbacks 
to buildings and create a landscaped frontage along Kansas Avenue. 
3. The plan provides a variety of housing types and densities. 
 
If the citywide averages were applied to the total estimated number of units in the application, the 
following numbers would result: 

Type of Zoning Proposed 
If Distributed by Citywide 
Average 

Relationship to Citywide 
Averages 

Single-family 78 units 134 units 42% lower than average 

Duplex 84 units 61 units 38% higher than average 

Multi-family 155* units 124 units 25% higher than average 

* This is an estimate of multi-family units. A specific number has not been provided by the developer 
and would be subject to review and approval of a specific site plan. 
 
After careful consideration of the application, the location, and the potential precedents, staff 
recommended an increase in the single-family lots by one block, and a decrease in multi-family 
zoning as shown in the exhibit below, to be instead designated for duplex lots. While this 
recommendation does not make a large difference in the overall numbers, it does set up a somewhat 
more conservative density transition while acknowledging the positive aspects of the plan. It would 
result in a net increase of about 12 single-family lots and a net loss of about 10 duplex units. Multi-
family impacts are harder to estimate, but the decreased size would likely have a net negative 
impact. It would result in the following summary: 

Type of Zoning Proposed 
If Modified to Staff 
Recommendation 

Relationship to Citywide 
Averages 

Single-family 78 units 90 units 32% lower than average 

Duplex 84 units 76 units 26% higher than average 

Multi-family 155* units 
139 units – estimated, subject to 
site plan 

13% higher than average 

* This is an estimate of multi-family units. A specific number has not been provided by the developer 
and would be subject to review and approval of a specific site plan. 
 



 
 
After preparation of this report and discussions, the developer has proposed a compromise shown in 
the following table and exhibit, and staff recommends its approval.   

 
 

Type of 
Zoning 

Original 
Proposal 

Original Staff 
Recommendation 

Compromise Proposal 
as Shown in Exhibit 
Above 

Relationship to 
Citywide Averages 

Single-family 78 units 90 units 84 units 37% lower 

Duplex 84 units 76 units 86 units 43% higher 

Multi-family 155* units 
139 units – 
estimated, subject 
to site plan 

139 units – estimated, 
subject to site plan 

13% higher 

* This is an estimate of multi-family units. A specific number has not been provided by the developer 
and would be subject to review and approval of a specific site plan. 
 
 

RM-8 to 

RD-10 

RD-10 to 

RS-6 

RD-10 to 

RS-6 

RM-8 to 

RD-10 



AutoCAD SHX Text
RD-10: 13.87 acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD-8: 3.01 acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
RS-6: 21.29 acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-8: 23.37 acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
RS-4: 5.96 acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
St Andrews Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kansas Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC 14-80-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW-SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC 14-80-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE-SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RS-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RS-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVER'S SUB'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTENNIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEM SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 51' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1336.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00° 50' 03"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1336.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88° 56' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
933.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01° 03' 12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
466.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88° 56' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
157.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 51' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
165.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 16"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01° 03' 12"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
288.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01° 03' 12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
466.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00° 51' 44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 16"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 51' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
341.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 51' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 16"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
771.000

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88° 56' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 29"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
193.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 29"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
960.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00° 51' 44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
700.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00° 51' 44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 08' 29"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
771.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 08' 29"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
740.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 46' 20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1327.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88° 56' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1233.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
530.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45%%D51'44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=300.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88° 56' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
145.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00° 51' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=189.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=296.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH=116.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=300.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH=267.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=116.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10%%D17'36"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=117.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH=117.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10%%D11'52"E



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-07 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2018-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY OWNED BY WATTS GROUP 
LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN 
THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR VARIOUS RESIDENTIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 Zoning Code Definitions of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances (2013) is hereby amended by amending the zoning on property legally described as: 
 
RS-4 Zoning 
Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 14, 
Township 80 North, Range 7 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Johnson County, 
Iowa; Thence S89°08’29” W, along the South Line of said Northeast Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter, 193.96 feet; Thence N00°51’44”W, 1336.26  feet to a point on the North line of said 
Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; Thence N88°56’48”E, along said North Line, 194.62 
feet to the Northeast Corner of said Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; Thence 
S00°50’03”E, along the East line of said Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter, 1336.92, to the 
said Point of Beginning. Said tract of land contains 5.96 acres. 
 
RS-6 Zoning 
Commencing at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
14, Township 80 North, Range 7 West, of the 5th Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Johnson County, 
Iowa; Thence S89°08’29” W, along the South line of said Northeast Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter, 193.96 feet, to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing S89°08’29” W, along said South 
line, 960.00 feet; Thence N00°51’44”W, 700.79 feet; Thence S89°08’16”W, 128.82 feet; Thence 
N00°51’44”W, 165.07 feet, Thence N88°56’48”E, 933.38 feet; Thence N01°03’12”W, 466.70 feet, to 
a point on the North line of said Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; Thence N88°56’48”E, 
along said North line, 157.00 feet; Thence S00°51’44”E, 1336.26 feet to the said Point of Beginning. 
Said tract of land contains 21.29 acres. 
 
 
RD-8 Zoning 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
14, Township 80 North, Range 7 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Johnson County, 
Iowa, Thence N89°08’29” E, along the South line of said Northwest Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter, 740.46 feet, to the Point of Beginning. Thence N00°51’44” W, 170.10 feet; Thence 
N89°08’16” E, 771.00 feet; Thence S00°51’44”E, 170.14 feet, to a point on the South line of the 
North One -Half of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 14; Thence S89°08’29”W, along said South 
line, 771.01 feet, to the said Point of Beginning. Said tract of land contains 3.01 acres.  
 
RD-10 Zoning 
Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 14, Township 80 North, 
Range 7 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa, Thence 
N88°56’48”E, along the North line of said Southwest Quarter, 1233.33 feet, to the Point of 
Beginning; Thence continuing N88°56’48”E, along said North line, 145.67 feet; Thence S01°03’12”E, 



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-07 
Page 2 
 

466.70 feet; Thence S00°51’44”E, 165.07 feet; Thence N89°08’16”E, 128.82 feet; Thence 
S00°51’44”E, 530.65 feet; Thence S89°08’16”W, 771.00 feet; Thence Northwesterly, 296.88 feet, 
along an arc of a 189.00 foot radius curve, concave Northeasterly, whose 267.29 foot chord bears 
N45°51’44”W; Thence N00°51’44”W, 341.65 feet; Thence N89°08’16”E, 640.00 feet; Thence 
N00°51’44”W, 113.85 feet; Thence Northeasterly 116.82 feet, along an arc of a 300.00 foot radius 
curve, concave Southeasterly, whose 116.08 foot chord bears N10°17’35”E; Thence Northeasterly 
117.82 feet, along an arc of a 300.00 foot radius curve, concave Northwesterly, whose 117.06 foot 
chord bears N10°11’51”E; Thence N01°03’12”W, 288.65 feet, to the said Point of Beginning. Said 
tract of land contains 13.87 acres. 
 
RM-8 Zoning 
Beginning at the Northwest Corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
14, Township 80 North, Range 7 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, North Liberty, Johnson County, 
Iowa, Thence N88°56’48”E, along the North line of said Northwest Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter, 1233.33 feet; Thence S01°03’12”E, 288.65 feet; Thence Southwesterly  117.82 feet, along 
an arc of a 300.00 foot radius curve, concave Northwesterly, whose 117.06 foot chord bears 
S10°11’51”W; Thence Southwesterly 116.82 feet, along an arc of a 300.00 foot radius curve, 
concave Southeasterly, whose 116.08 foot chord bears S10°17’35”W; Thence S00°51’44”E, 113.85 
feet; Thence S89°08’16”W, 640.00 feet; Thence S00°51’44”E, 341.65 feet; Thence Southeasterly 
296.88 feet, along an arc of a 189.00 foot radius curve, concave Northeasterly, whose 267.29 foot 
chord bears S45°51’44”E; Thence S00°51’44”E, 170.10 feet, to a point on the South line of said 
Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; Thence S89°08’29”W, along said South line, 740.46 
feet to the Southwest Corner of said Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; Thence  
N00°46’20”W, along the West line of said Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter, 1327.87 
feet, to the said Point of Beginning. Said tract of land contains 27.37 acres. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole 
or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on _____________. 
Second reading on __________. 
Third and final reading on __________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-07 
Page 3 
 

I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the City 
Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2018-07 in the North Liberty Leader on 
__________.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

North Central Junior 
High Site Plan 

 



April 24, 2018 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Revised Site Plan Approval Request 
(Legal: North Corridor School Addition, Lot 1) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 
memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This is a request from the Iowa City Community School District to approve a revised site plan for the 
existing North Central Junior High, located at the northeast corner of Front Street and Forevergreen 
Road. The proposal provides for additional classroom and gymnasium space, as well as additional 
parking, all identified on the site plan materials.  
 
Traffic issues are an ongoing issue at all of the metro schools, including North Central. School district 
forecasts show that an additional 248 students may attend North Central when its service area is totally 
built out, which is likely to take quite a number of years. Unfortunately, site constraints make physical 
changes for traffic improvements challenging, and none are proposed as part of this site plan, though 28 
new parking spaces are planned. In order to better identify the existing and future traffic issues, and to 
recommend options for improvement, City and School Board staffs have met several times, and ICCSD 
representatives will attend the meeting to comment.  The site is well served by the City’s trail and 
sidewalk systems.  
 
Setbacks exceed the minimum requirements of the district, and storm water management features have 
been thoughtfully incorporated. The site topography drops substantially to the northeast, toward 
Muddy Creek, so the additions require quite a lot of grading to create the additional building space 
needed. 
 
The design of the additions is an attractive modern style with very high masonry content, numerous wall 
offsets, and roof variety matching the existing building.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the revised site plan. 
 
Note:  

The BMP Agreement will need to be developed and submitted together after site plan approval but 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at their regular meeting 5/1/2018.



before occupancy is permitted. The BMP (aka SMF) maintenance agreement is required between 
the Owner and the City for long term maintenance responsibilities of the stormwater management 
features. The owner is to provide proposed maintenance requirements to the City Engineer in Word 
format so that the City Attorney can fold them into the standard agreement format. 

 



















COOLERFREEZER

COOKING

DRY
STORAGE

OFFICE

WASHING
WARE

WASH
/DRY

UTILITY

LOCKERS

LAUNDRY PREP

BAKERY

KITCHEN

HOT/COLD

SUB/SALAD

GRAB-N-GO

CASHIERS

TRAY
RETURN

TRAY
PICK-UP

TRAY
PICK-UP

HP

HP

TV

TV

TV

UP

UP

DN DN

Interkal Spectator Seating World Wide www.interkal.com Interkal Spectator Seating World Wide www.interkal.com Interkal Spectator Seating World Wide www.interkal.com Interkal Spectator Seating World Wide www.interkal.com Interkal Spectator Seating World Wide www.interkal.com

14s14s

7s7s

5981 East Cork Street - Kalamazoo, Michigan 49048 telephone (269) 349-1521  fax (269) 349-6530 5981 East Cork Street - Kalamazoo, Michigan 49048 telephone (269) 349-1521  fax (269) 349-6530 5981 East Cork Street - Kalamazoo, Michigan 49048 telephone (269) 349-1521  fax (269) 349-6530 5981 East Cork Street - Kalamazoo, Michigan 49048 telephone (269) 349-1521  fax (269) 349-6530 5981 East Cork Street - Kalamazoo, Michigan 49048 telephone (269) 349-1521  fax (269) 349-6530

11' - 0" 84' - 0" 9' - 0"

1
0

' -
 0

"

8' - 4 3/8"

2 HOUR FIRE OVERHEAD
COILING DOOR
FIRE AREA = 48,800 S.F.
ALLOWABLE = 51,000 S.F.

104' - 0"

?

?

EXISTING 
GARAGE

CLASSROOM ADDITION
3,150 S.F. PER LEVEL

MUSIC

124

GEN ED

120

GEN ED

121

GIRLS ?

MUSIC

105

MUSIC

149

RR

114
ROOM

153

HOME EC

150

ART

151 BD

152

MUSIC

125

10' - 0"

OFFICE

126STOR

125
INST

127

3

A301

A2023

A201

6

1

A301

A201

1

A2013A201 2

A202 1

7
9

' -
 0

"

4
' -

 0
"

6
6

' -
 0

"

46' - 0"

5
0

' -
 0

"
6

' -
 0

"

8
' -

 0
"

6
6

' -
 0

"
4

' -
 0

"

FITNESS

104

INSTRUMENT STORAGE

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

A201

7

A202

2

LOCKERS

EXISTING: 593
NEW FIRST FLOOR: 43
NEW SECOND FLOOR: 43

TOTAL: 679

36' - 0"

17' - 4"

7' - 0"

NORTH

AREA A

AREA B

PROJECT NUMBER

PRINCIPAL

DESIGNER

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED 
SPECIFICALLY FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED 

PROJECT. THEY ARE NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON 
OTHER PROJECTS OR IN OTHER LOCATIONS 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND 
PARTICIPATION OF SVPA ARCHITECTS INC. 

REPRODUCTION IS PROHIBITED.

REVISIONS

ISSUANCE

C
:\
U

s
e
rs

\j
o
n
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
\1

7
0
8
8

_
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
J
u
n

io
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o

o
l_

j-
o
o

s
te

rh
u
is

.r
v
t

A101

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
OVERALL

17088

03/08/18
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

VB
JO

2018

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

1
7
2
5
 N

O
R

T
H

 D
O

D
G

E
 S

T

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

, 
IA

  
5
2
2
4
5

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

J
U

N
IO

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

1
8
0
 F

O
R

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
 R

D

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IB
E

R
T

Y
, 

IA
  

5
2
3
1
7

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

FIRST FLOOR

SCALE:
3

3D-1



EL 22' - 0"

EL 22' - 0"

NORTH

AREA A

AREA B

PROJECT NUMBER

PRINCIPAL

DESIGNER

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED 
SPECIFICALLY FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED 

PROJECT. THEY ARE NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON 
OTHER PROJECTS OR IN OTHER LOCATIONS 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND 
PARTICIPATION OF SVPA ARCHITECTS INC. 

REPRODUCTION IS PROHIBITED.

REVISIONS

ISSUANCE

C
:\
U

s
e
rs

\j
o
n
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
\1

7
0
8
8

_
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
J
u
n

io
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o

o
l_

j-
o
o

s
te

rh
u
is

.r
v
t

A200
VIEWS

17088

03/08/18
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

VB
JO

2018

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

1
7
2
5
 N

O
R

T
H

 D
O

D
G

E
 S

T

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

, 
IA

  
5
2
2
4
5

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

J
U

N
IO

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

1
8
0
 F

O
R

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
 R

D

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IB
E

R
T

Y
, 

IA
  

5
2
3
1
7

SCALE:
1

VIEW FROM WEST

SCALE:
2

VIEW FROM EAST

T.O. MASONRY; 32'-8"

LIGHT MONITORS, MATCH EXISTING

PUNCH WINDOWS, MATCH EXISTING

T.O. MASONRY; 25'-4"

LIGHT MONITORS, MATCH EXISTING

PUNCH WINDOWS, MATCH EXISTING

CMU, 3" RIGID INSULATION, AIR, FACE BRICK

T.O. MASONRY; 32'-8"

CMU, 3" RIGID INSULATION, AIR, FACE BRICK

NEW TWO STORY 

CLASSROOM WING

T.O. MASONRY; 25'-4"

NEW TWO STORY 

CLASSROOM WING

NEW FITNESS ADDITION

NEW CAFETERIA 

EXPANSION

RTU'S

ARCHITECTURAL FINISH PRECAST WITH 
INTEGRAL COLOR 

PRECAST DOUBLE T ROOF STRUCTURE, 
RIGID INSULATION, TPO MEMBRANE

EXISTING 
GARAGE TO 

REMAIN

METAL JOIST ROOF, RIGID INSULATION, 
TPO MEMBRANE

NEW TWO STORY 

CLASSROOM WING

NEW FITNESS ADDITION

NEW CAFETERIA 

EXPANSION

RTU'S

CMU, 3" RIGID INSULATION, AIR, FACE BRICK

EXISTING 
GARAGE TO 

REMAIN

NEW TWO STORY 

CLASSROOM WING

ACM COMPOSITE
ENTRY CANOPY

CURTAINWALL

CURTAIN WALL

CURTAIN WALL

TORNADO WINDOWS

ENTRY CANOPY 
OPTION

SCALE:
3

CANOPY

CANOPIES AT BOTH 
ENTRYS WOULD TIE 
TOGETHER

ACM CANOPY

POLYCARBINATE SKYLIGHT



Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

1 2 3 4 11 12 13 14 15 22 23 24 25

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

26 27 28

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

ABCD

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

1234

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

19202122232425

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

262728

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

NORTH

AREA A

AREA B

PROJECT NUMBER

PRINCIPAL

DESIGNER

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED 
SPECIFICALLY FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED 

PROJECT. THEY ARE NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON 
OTHER PROJECTS OR IN OTHER LOCATIONS 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND 
PARTICIPATION OF SVPA ARCHITECTS INC. 

REPRODUCTION IS PROHIBITED.

REVISIONS

ISSUANCE

C
:\
U

s
e
rs

\j
o
n
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
\1

7
0
8
8

_
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
J
u
n

io
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o

o
l_

j-
o
o

s
te

rh
u
is

.r
v
t

A201

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS -
SOUTH

17088

03/08/18
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

VB
JO

2018

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

1
7
2
5
 N

O
R

T
H

 D
O

D
G

E
 S

T

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

, 
IA

  
5
2
2
4
5

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

J
U

N
IO

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

1
8
0
 F

O
R

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
 R

D

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IB
E

R
T

Y
, 

IA
  

5
2
3
1
7

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

South Elev

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

WEST ELEVATION - SOUTH
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3
EAST ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE:
4

SW CLASSROOM EXTERIOR
SCALE:

5
SE CLASSROOM EXTERIOR

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
6

SW CLASSROOM NORTH
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

7
SE CLASSROOM NORTH



Level 1
0' - 0"

HIJ

LOWER LEVEL
-8' - 1 5/8"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

56789101112

TOP OF MASONRY
- SOUTH
24' - 10"

WEST CLASS
-2' - 4"

LOWER LEVEL
-8' - 1 5/8"

4' - 3"3' - 4"4' - 3"
EL 4' - 6 3/8"

EL 12' - 8"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
12' - 8"

TOP OF MASONRY
- NORTH

26' - 2"

D E F G H I J

9' - 11 1/32"

LOWER LEVEL
-8' - 1 5/8"

EL 22' - 0"EL 16' - 0"

NORTH

AREA A

AREA B

PROJECT NUMBER

PRINCIPAL

DESIGNER

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED 
SPECIFICALLY FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED 

PROJECT. THEY ARE NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON 
OTHER PROJECTS OR IN OTHER LOCATIONS 

WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND 
PARTICIPATION OF SVPA ARCHITECTS INC. 

REPRODUCTION IS PROHIBITED.

REVISIONS

ISSUANCE

C
:\
U

s
e
rs

\j
o
n
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
\1

7
0
8
8

_
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
J
u
n

io
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o

o
l_

j-
o
o

s
te

rh
u
is

.r
v
t

A202

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS -
NORTH

17088

03/08/18
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

VB
JO

2018

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

1
7
2
5
 N

O
R

T
H

 D
O

D
G

E
 S

T

IO
W

A
 C

IT
Y

, 
IA

  
5
2
2
4
5

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

J
U

N
IO

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

1
8
0
 F

O
R

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
 R

D

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IB
E

R
T

Y
, 

IA
  

5
2
3
1
7

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
3

NORTH ADDITON - EAST





PARENT DROP-OFF / PICK-UP

PARENT DROP-OFF / PICK-UP

CAR RIDERS
RELEASED AT
WEST DOOR

BUS RIDERS
RELEASED AT
MAIN DOOR

NEW CROSSWALK

/ P
IC

K
-U

P
P

A
R

E
N

T
 D

R
O

P
-O

F
F

BUS DROP-OFF / PICK-UP

 North Central Junior High Vehicular Circulation Modification 
CONCEPT 6e

RESTRIPE PARKING LOT
FOR DIAGONAL STALLS

POTENTIAL
ADDITIONAL
PARKING

P
O

TE
N

TIA
L

A
D

D
ITIO

N
A

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

POTENTIAL
ADDITIONAL

PARKING

POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL PARKING

NEW DRIVE LANES



City of North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-89 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2018-89 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN 
FOR NORTH CENTRAL JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL, NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner and applicant, Iowa City Community School District, has filed 
with the City Clerk a development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Lot 1 of North Corridor School Addition, to the City of North Liberty, Johnson 
County, Iowa, in accordance with the recorded plat thereof, in the records of the 
Johnson County Recorder’s Office, containing 59.84 acres and subject to easements 
and restrictions of record;     

 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the development site plan for North Central Junior High School. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Salary Resolution 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-96 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-96 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALARIES AND HOURLY 
WAGES FOR CITY EMPLOYEES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OF 
JULY 1, 2018 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the following full-time and permanent part-time employees and/or 

positions of the City of North Liberty shall be paid the gross wages and salaries indicated in 
Attachment A for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019;  

WHEREAS, overtime pay for hourly employees is at one and one-half times the 
regular hourly rate of pay for hours worked in excess of forty hours per week; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk of the City of North Liberty is hereby authorized to issue 
checks, less legally required or authorized deductions from the amount set out above, on 
the days of the payroll, and to make contributions to IPERS, Social Security and Medicare, 
or other purposes required by law or authorized by the City Council all subject to audit and 
review of the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the attached list of salaries and hourly 
wages for the Fiscal Year of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 is approved.  

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



City of North Liberty - Fiscal Year 2019 Salaries

Employee Position

Police

Venenga, Diane Police Chief $9,535.07 Monthly Salary
Landsgard, Tyson Police Lieutenant $7,735.87 Monthly Salary
Olson, Adam Police Sergeant $6,432.40 Monthly Salary
Regenwether, Creighton Police Sergeant $6,586.67 Monthly Salary
Shine, Chris Police Sergeant $6,586.67 Monthly Salary
Ross, Ruben Police Sergeant $6,281.60 Monthly Salary
Ruffcorn, Alisha Administrative Assistant II $22.55 Hourly
Rich, Lauryn Administrative Assistant $19.48 Hourly
Gavin, Tim Police Officer Part-Time $32.79 Hourly
Tygart, Chuck Police Officer $32.79 Hourly
Rockafellow, Ryan Police Officer $32.79 Hourly
Santiago, Juan Police Officer Part-Time $26.05 Hourly
Seymour, Mitch Police Officer-DTF $31.67 Hourly
Miller, Joel Police Officer $30.55 Hourly
Jennings, Andy Police Officer $30.55 Hourly
Clubb, Travis Police Officer-Investigator $29.41 Hourly
Davis, Bryan Police Officer $28.30 Hourly
Wood, Casey Police Officer $28.30 Hourly
Sammons, Scott Police Officer $28.30 Hourly
Campbell, Ben Police Officer $27.17 Hourly
Vazquez, Ricardo Police Officer $27.17 Hourly
Sexton, Bruce Police Officer $26.05 Hourly
Madole, Spence Police Officer $26.05 Hourly
Kapfer, Eric Police Officer $26.05 Hourly
Fjelstul, Alec Non-Certified Police Officer $19.06 Hourly
   

Fire

Platz, Brian Fire Chief $4,400.80 Bi-Weekly Salary
Hardin, Bryan Assistant Fire Chief $1,867.60 Bi-Weekly Salary
Schmooke, William Assistant Fire Chief $1,769.00 Bi-Weekly Salary

Building

Palmer, Thomas Building Official $7,819.07 Monthly Salary
Christensen, Jerald Building Inspector I $31.07 Hourly
Yoder, Benjamin Building Inspector I $25.99 Hourly
Davis, Brandon Rental Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer $25.38 Hourly
Wolfe, Michael Stormwater Coordinator 29.07 Hourly
Conklin, Trudy Administrative Assistant $23.04 Hourly

Rate of Pay 



City of North Liberty - Fiscal Year 2019 Salaries

Public Safety

Lewis, Amy School Crossing Guard $19.10 Hourly
Etherington, Alfred School Crossing Guard $17.49 Hourly
Napierala, Daniel School Crossing Guard $16.52 Hourly
Jetter, James School Crossing Guard (Sub) $18.01 Hourly

Library

Garner, Jennifer Library Director $7,496.67 Monthly Salary
Jordebrek, Jennifer Assistant Library Director $5,990.40 Monthly Salary
Lubben, Janet Technology Services Librarian $29.17 Hourly
Hayes, Elaine Adult Services Librarian $29.82 Hourly
Frisbie, Andrew Collection Development Librarian $24.68 Hourly
Harrison, Melanie Marketing & Events Coordinator $26.61 Hourly
O'Sheridan-Tabor, Emily Family Services Librarian $23.64 Hourly
Silva, Erin Youth & Teen Services Librarian $23.09 Hourly
Defauw, Mitchell Public Services Librarian $19.48 Hourly
Allen, Caroline Youth & Teen Services Library Assistant $14.97 Hourly
Fisher, Jasmine Library Assistant II $13.61 Hourly
Vahedian Khezerlou, Nessa Library Assistant $11.76 Hourly
Snapp, Shane Library Assistant $11.66 Hourly
Hoover De Galvez, Elizabeth Library Assistant  $11.66 Hourly
Page, Isolda Library Assistant $11.66 Hourly
Martin, Hanna Library Assistant $11.35 Hourly
Wehr, Julia Library Assistant $11.35 Hourly
Schneider, Erik Library Page $12.02 Hourly
    

Parks

Goldsmith, Guy Director Parks, Buildings, Grounds $7,819.07 Monthly Salary
Hamer, Timothy Assistant Director Parks, Buildings, Grounds $33.24 Hourly
Hamer, Brian Parks Maintenance Worker III $27.24 Hourly
Eilers, Theodore Parks Maintenance Worker III $22.55 Hourly
Clendenen, Zachery Parks Maintenance Worker I $18.48 Hourly
Amos, Dustin Parks Maintenance Worker I $18.48 Hourly
Conklin, Jerry Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.82 Hourly
Flaucher, Brandon Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.49 Hourly
Nelson, Blake Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.32 Hourly
White, Austin Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.32 Hourly
Kalkhoff, Bryan Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.32 Hourly
Anderson, Samuel Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.00 Hourly
Meade, Joshua Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.00 Hourly
Vance, Conner Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.00 Hourly
West, Adam Seasonal Groundskeeper $12.00 Hourly



City of North Liberty - Fiscal Year 2019 Salaries

Recreation

Simpson, Michelle Recreation Director $3,608.80 Bi-Weekly Salary
Motley, Brian Assistant Recreation Director $3,182.40 Bi-Weekly Salary
Fielder, Matthew Youth Program Supervisor $6,174.13 Monthly Salary
Meseck, Matthew PM Recreation Supervisor $4,998.93 Monthly Salary
Huisman, Kyle Site Supervisor/Concession Manager $4,097.60 Monthly Salary
Egly, Jason AM-Administrative Assistant $21.95 Hourly
Greene, Noah PM-Administrative Assistant $17.87 Hourly
Leonard, Dale Custodial Supervisor $31.15 Hourly
Benner, Jeff PM Custodian  $19.37 Hourly
Wingert, Mark Custodian $19.37 Hourly
Binggeli, Jacob Head Counselor Part-Time $15.33 Hourly
Taylor, William Building Monitor Part-Time $12.64 Hourly
Andrews, Sarah Bldg. Monitor/Asst. Concession Mgr. Part-Time     $11.12 / $12.70 Hourly
Price, Jason Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Kral, Miranda Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Dozo, Anel Building Monitor-Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
Rourke, Mariah Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Ritter, Abigail Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Hildreth, Tyler Building Monitor-Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Vest, Matthew Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Hall, Kelsey Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Connolly, Thomas Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Erickson, Amber Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Murrey, Casey Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Bohr, Eric Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Perez, Elsa Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Pilcher, Zachary Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Rourke, Chase Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Ernst, Katlyn Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Buschelman, Sarah Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Dusterhoft, Brianna Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Peterson, Leo Seasonal Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Davis, Cole Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.79 Hourly
Rourke, Nile Building Monitor Part-Time $11.12 Hourly
Strabala, Kalei Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Phillips, Anne Building Monitor Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
Gerot, Emily Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Greene, Colby Jr. Recreation Counselor/Conc. Cashier Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
Davis, Megan Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.10 Hourly
Puettmann, Tyler Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Stauffer, Christopher Building Monitor Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
Hondlik, Zachary Building Monitor Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
Riggan, Grant Recreation Counselor Part-Time $11.00 Hourly
King, Skylar Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Bradshaw, Breanna Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.38 Hourly
Bailey, Jordan Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.38 Hourly
Schroeder, Brett Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Cundiff, Lexie Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Forman, Phillip Building Monitor Part-Time $10.69 Hourly
Kusick, Cynthia Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.40 Hourly
Brennemann, Abby Building Monitor Part-Time $10.40 Hourly



City of North Liberty - Fiscal Year 2019 Salaries

Brokaw, Holly Building Monitor Part-Time $10.40 Hourly
Zakes, Nathan Building Monitor Part-Time $10.40 Hourly
Folkerts, Katherine Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.10 Hourly
Folkerts, Matthew Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.10 Hourly
Sierra, Carlos Seasonal BASP/Pool Intern $10.50 Hourly
Schabilion, Arianna Seasonal Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.40 Hourly
Hellman, Megan Seasonal Junior Recreation Counselor Part-Time $10.10 Hourly
Snyder, Alexander Seasonal Recreation Intern $10.50 Hourly

Pool

Kipp, Ashley Aquatic Supervisor $2,363.20 Bi-Weekly Salary
Lifeguard $10.40-$11.12 Hourly
Concessions $10.40-$11.12 Hourly
Swim Instructor $11.00-$11.91 Hourly
Private Swim Instructor $20.60 Hourly
Assistant Concessions Manager $12.10-$12.70 Hourly
Pool Manager $11.75-$12.78 Hourly
Head Lesson Coordinator $11.75-$12.78 Hourly
Lifeguard Instructor $13.25-$15.75 Hourly
Water Aerobics Instructor $15.00 Hourly

Planning
 

Wheatley, Arthur Planning Director $7,819.07 Monthly Salary

Administration

Heiar, Ryan City Administrator $12,963.60 Monthly Salary
Peterson, Scott City Attorney $12,963.60 Monthly Salary
Mulcahey, Tracey City Clerk/Assistant City Administrator $8,749.87 Monthly Salary
Hilton, Debra Human Resource Director $7,819.07 Monthly Salary
Byers, Mary Deputy City Clerk/Utility Billing Clerk $32.98 Hourly
Dykstra, Jacqueline Administrative Assistant-Payables $29.17 Hourly
Harris, Jackie HR / Legal Assistant $26.61 Hourly
House, Stacey Administrative Assistant $19.48 Hourly
Farr, Melanie Administrative Assistant  $17.87 Hourly
Laffey, Angela Special Projects Coordinator $4,770.13 Monthly Salary
Hartman, Marjorie Summer Lunch Program Coordinator $15.00 Hourly
Bailey, Carissa Assistant Summer Lunch Program Coordinator $10.00 Hourly



City of North Liberty - Fiscal Year 2019 Salaries

Communications

Bergus, Nicholas Communications Director $7,176.00 Monthly Salary
Miller, Jillian Community Engagement Coordinator $4,998.93 Monthly Salary
Blackman, Derek Communications Specialist $22.37 Hourly
Runkle, Evan Communications Assistant Part-Time $15.83 Hourly

Streets

Pentecost, Michael Street Superintendent $7,819.07 Monthly Salary 
Lange, Daniel Assistant Street Superintendent $33.24 Hourly
Murray, Justin Locate Laborer III $23.64 Hourly
Kinney, Steven Laborer III $22.55 Hourly
Conklin, Clint Laborer III $23.09 Hourly
Werle, Michael Laborer III $22.55 Hourly
Taylor, Ryan Laborer I $18.05 Hourly
Siddell, Jordon Laborer I $18.05 Hourly
Salm, Andrew Construction Inspector $27.73 Hourly

 

Water

Metternich, Gregory Water Superintendent $7,819.07 Monthly Salary
Kopecky, Shannon Assistant Water Superintendent $34.77 Hourly
Keating, Michael Water Operator II $31.07 Hourly
Pretasky, James Water Maintenance Specialist $26.99 Hourly
Bowman, Nicholas Water Maintenance Specialist $25.18 Hourly

Waste Water

Lammers, Drew Wastewater Superintendent $3,460.00 Bi-Weekly Salary
Furler, David Wastewater Operations Supervisor $30.48 Hourly
Arey, Thomas Wastewater Maintenance Specialist $28.81 Hourly
Jaster, Cristopher Wastewater Maintenance Specialist $24.01 Hourly
Tusing, Delen Wastewater Operator I $22.44 Hourly
Tonarelli, Anthony Wastewater Operator I $20.91 Hourly
Farrier, Mark Wastewater Operator I $21.41 Hourly

*Based on a 2080 hour work year, excludes overtime, on-call pay and shift differential.
 



 

 
 

Blues and BBQ Special 
Event Permit 

 



 Temporary Special Event Permit Application Page 1 

  Form Revised 04/20/2016 

 

 This application must be submitted no later than four (4) weeks prior to the event.  An 
application fee of $50 is due at the time the application is submitted.  The application fee may be waived 
for non-profit organizations at the discretion of the City Administrator.  City staff will review the 
application and the City Administrator may approve the permit subject to conditions determined to be 
appropriate to the specific event.  
 An applicant may be required to submit a cash deposit of up to $1,000 pursuant to North Liberty 
Ordinances 171.03(2)(E) and 171.03(3)(E).  If no law enforcement or other costs are incurred by the City 
as a result of the event, the deposit will be refunded.  
 The City encourages all applicants to review the City ordinances relating to amplified music 
(Chapter 53) and alcohol service (Chapter 45), which are available on the City’s website or upon request 
from City Hall.   
 
Event Name:   __________________________________________________________________   

Organization Name:   ____________________________________________________________ 

Applicant Name:   ______________________________ Date of Birth:   __________________ 

Address:   ______________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person(s) During the Event:  ________________________________________________ 

Telephone:  ___________________________  Email:  _________________________________ 

Date(s) of Event:   ________________________ Start Time: _________  End Time: _________ 

 ________________________ Start Time: _________  End Time: _________ 

 ________________________ Start Time: _________  End Time: _________ 

Location of Event:   _____________________________ Number of Guests:  _______________ 

Will there be amplified music or other noise?   Yes      No      If yes, please specify: _______    

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Will alcohol be served or sold?   Yes      No      If yes, please specify:  __________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Provide verification of liquor license if applicable. 

Will food or beverages be served or sold?   Yes      No      If yes, please specify:   _________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Provide verification of permits or licenses if applicable. 

Is the closing of any street, sidewalk, trail, or other public property requested?   Yes      No  

If yes,  please specify: ____________________________________________________________ 

How and when will area residents be notified of the event?   _____________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 



Temporary Special Event Permit Application Page 2 

Will liability insurance coverage be obtained for the event?   Yes      No       

Will any signage be used for the event?   Yes      No      If yes, signage must be approved 

separately by the Zoning Official.  

Please list the names and addresses of any additional event sponsors:   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Description of Event:  Please be specific; include details about the purpose of the event, 
expected attendance, the event schedule, provisions for cleanup, public notice, advertising, 
media coverage, etc.     

Attach a map showing the event layout; indicate the locations of attractions, music, parking, 
and alcohol and food service and sales; show any requested use or closure of streets, sidewalks, 
trails, and other public property. 

Describe in detail the security for the event: 

Safety/Weather considerations:  
Identify who at the event(s) will be responsible for monitoring for severe weather by what 
means they plan to do so. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

We've received verbal approval to display yard signs beginning July 1. 

nbergus
Typewritten Text
For safety and weather portion, please refer to attached plan. It has been used for 2016 and 2017 as well.



 Temporary Special Event Permit Application Page 3  

Identify all triggers which will suspend your event or cancel/postpone the event. (Examples:  
winds of greater than 60 mph, lightning within 5 miles of the venue, or the issuance by NWS of 
a Severe Thunderstorm Warning or Tornado Warning in the area your event is occurring) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

How will participants be notified to seek shelter or evacuate the area?  What method of public 
notification will be used at the venue and who will make the announcement? 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Identify the location for shelter for those on site.  Or, will the attendees be notified to evacuate 
the area and seek shelter? 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Identify timing triggers for weather events.  (Examples: Upon notification that severe weather 
will be affecting the event in the next 20 minutes, participants will be notified to seek shelter 
and the event will be suspended until the storm threat is passed.) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

If the number of attendees is expected to exceed 3,000 people for more than 4 hours, what 
emergency medical services or first aid services will be available onsite for the duration of the 
event? 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Applicant Signature:   ____________________________________ Date:   _______________ 
 
NOISE VIOLATIONS, ALCOHOL VIOLATIONS AND OTHER ISSUES CAN RESULT IN LAW 
ENFORCEMENT ENDING AN EVENT EVEN WHEN A TEMPORARY SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT HAS 
BEEN ISSUED.   



1 
 

NORTH LIBERTY BLUES & BBQ 
 

I. Purpose: 
 

The purpose of this plan is to establish an understanding of the command structure, emergency 
operations guidance and crisis management for North Liberty Blues & BBQ on July 14, 2018 in the 
City of North Liberty’s Centennial Park. This plan also outlines the procedures by which information 
will be released to the media and public. 

 
This emergency operations plan shall be utilized for warning North Liberty Blues & BBQ participants 
and attendees of approaching severe weather or other danger, to identify a location of safety where 
attendees may seek shelter and protection and to establish the method for the coordinated release of 
information. 

 
This plan and command structure will be utilized within the Centennial Park. Emergency incidents 
outside of festival grounds in Centennial Park will be handled through the normal dispatch of 
responders and resources. 

 
II. Definitions: 
North Liberty Blues & BBQ areas and venues: 
Areas designated for North Liberty Blues & BBQ.  

 

North Liberty Blues & BBQ command: 
The command post will be an RV in Centennial Park at 1565 St Andrews Drive. The Communications 
Department Office at 520 W Cherry Street will also serve as a command post if necessary. City of 
North Liberty resources related to North Liberty Blues & BBQ will be managed from these locations. 

 
Command Post Hours of Operation: 

 
Event Duration: July 14th 1000 until approximately 0000 (midnight) 

Crisis Management & Emergency Operations Plan 



2 
 

Map A 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Since there is no shelter on site, all attendees would be directed to walk or ride buses to nearby 
North Bend Elementary School (see Map B below). For rain without the threat of lighting or high 
winds, participants may find shelter under tents. However, if any lighting is detected by command 
and/or local weather partners, committee members and volunteers should direct attendees to North 
Bend Elementary School. 

  Map B 

 

 

Communications: 
Communications between North Liberty Blues & BBQ committee members, volunteers, 
service providers and city staff is critical to the success and safety of all. 

 
The command post will have radio communication capability with the following agencies, 
departments and committees: 

 
North Liberty Police Department 
North Liberty Fire Department 
North Liberty Parks 
North Liberty Public Works 
Johnson County Joint Emergency Communications Center (JECC) 
North Liberty Blues & BBQ Committee Chairs 

 
In addition, a list of phone and contact information will be maintained in the command post for North 
Liberty Blues & BBQ committee members, City of North Liberty staff, and agencies or organizations 
that do not have radio communications. 

 
Non-emergency radio communications shall be managed by the North Liberty Blues & BBQ 
committee chairs using handheld portable radios assigned to committee volunteers. 

 
Public Safety Communications will adhere to the ICS 205 Communications Plan. 

Command Post 

Centennial Park 

North Bend 
Elementary/Emergency Shelter 



4 
 

III. Transportation Options 
Due to improvements and construction in Centennial, parking will be extremely limited in the park. 
Shuttles have been contracted by Durham School Services to provide continuous transportation 
between UICCU and Centennial Park and North Bend Elementary and Centennial Park. Four buses 
will operate between 10a.m.-4p.m. and six buses will operate from 4p.m.-11:30p.m.  
 
In the event of a weather watch or warning, a Blues & BBQ Committee Chair will call Durham School 
Services On-Call representative at 319-631-1310 to notify drivers to transport people a quickly from 
the park to North Bend as possible (still clockwise on route, see next page), and to stop transportation 
service inbound to the park. 
 
Published Public Information 
Walk & Bike 
North Liberty’s network of trails and sidewalks makes getting to Centennial Park on foot or by bike 
snap. And St. Andrews Drive will be pedestrian-, bike- and bus-only from North Bend Elementary and 
Prairie Street during the festival to make it easy to get there. We’ll have plenty of bike parking by the 
pond on site, too. 
Shuttle 
Shuttle buses to and from the festival grounds will run from 10 a.m. to 11 p.m., leaving approximately 
every 10 minutes. Catch the Yellow Route from the University of Iowa Community Credit Union (2355 
Landon Road) or the Blue Route from North Bend Elementary (2230 St Andrews Drive).  
Parking 
We’ll have parking available at Mar Lee Park (595 Kansas Avenue) and North Bend Elementary near 
the corner of Kansas Avenue and St. Andrews Drive, and the University of Iowa Community Credit 
Union (2355 Landon Road). We’ll have limited, weather-depended parking at Centennial Park, 
accessible from Jones Boulevard on the east 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

IV.  Weather 
The command post, in cooperation with the Johnson County Joint Emergency Communications 
Center, National Weather Service (Davenport) and Emergency Management, will monitor weather 
conditions for North Liberty Blues & BBQ on Saturday, July 14, 2018. 

 
The Command Post will make appropriate notifications of weather watches and warnings when such 
conditions occur. 

 
Definitions 

 

A watch means that conditions are favorable for the formation of severe weather. Preparations 
should be made to protect yourself and others around you. 

 
A warning means that a severe thunderstorm, dangerous hail or a tornado has been spotted in the 
area. Immediate evacuation to a place of safety is necessary. 

 
The operations supervisor is the individual designated to direct which messages will be 
communicated to attendees. For North Liberty Blues & BBQ 2018 the operations supervisor is Lt. 
Tyson Landsgard. 

 
The key holder is the individual responsible for unlocking North Bend Elementary School for shelter. 
For North Liberty Blues & BBQ 2018 the key holder is Chief Diane Venenga. 

 
Concept: 

 

The concept of the weather warning and safety plan for Centennial Park during North Liberty Blues & 
BBQ is to: 

 
- Provide for the monitoring of weather conditions in the area. 
- Provide a means of communicating potential weather problems to the command post. 
- Provide a means for alerting participants and others in the area to the potential for severe weather. 
- Provide for the sheltering of people in the event of severe weather. 

 
Monitoring Weather Conditions: 

 
Command will have access to weather monitoring throughout the event through the following 
redundancies: 

 
- Computer Radar or cell phone application 
- Public Safety Radio at the Johnson County Joint Emergency Communications Center or 

Emergency Management 
- Telephone at the National Weather Service (Davenport) 563-386-3815, Joint Emergency 

Communications Center 319-356-6800, Emergency Management (319) 356-6761  
- Email (non-emergent) at weather-cbs2iowa@sbgtv.com. 

 
Command post staff is charged with maintaining periodic contact with the National Weather Service 
and for monitoring any weather development that could potentially affect this area. 

mailto:weather-cbs2iowa@sbgtv.com


6 
 

If the potential for severe weather is declared for this area, the following monitoring components will be 
put into place by the designated Operations Supervisor: 

 
1. Direct Communications will be established with the National Weather Service, either through 

on- site personnel or by calling 563-386-3815. The Operations Supervisor will continuously 
monitor the potential for severe weather. 

 
2. Police, Fire, Parks, Public Works, EMS and North Liberty Blues & BBQ committee members 

will be notified of the potential for severe weather. 
 

3. The designated Key Holder for North Bend Elementary School will restrict their movements 
to the areas surrounding the school and be prepared to open should the need arise 
suddenly. 

 

Severe Weather Watch Procedure: 
 

1. The Operations Supervisor will advise all emergency and operations personnel working the 
event of any severe weather watch issued that encompasses the North Liberty area. 

 
2. The North Liberty Blues & BBQ Committee shall be notified of any severe weather watch issued 

for the area. 
 
3. The nature and scope of the watch will be broadcast on the Volunteers’ communications network. 

 
4. The Operations Supervisor, Lt. Tyson Landsgard, will notify Police, Fire, Parks, Public Works, 

EMS and North Liberty Blues & BBQ Committee that a watch for the North Liberty area has been 
issued and its effective time. 

 
5. A Blues & BBQ Committee Chair will call Durham School Services On-Call or talk to one of the 

shuttle drivers directly to notify all drivers not to bring any more attendees to the park.  
 
6. Periodic contact shall be made with the National Weather Service at (563) 386-3815 for 

current projections on the potential for severe weather development in the area and storm 
movement. 

 
7. If the watch is issued during event times, the Command Post will request an announcement 

be made regarding the weather watch at the event stage(s). 
 
8. If the watch is cancelled, a Blues & BBQ Committee Chair will contact Durham School 

Services to resume bringing guests to the park. 
 

Severe Weather Warning Procedure: 
 

1. The Operations Supervisor will advise all emergency and operations personnel working the 
event, including the North Liberty Blues & BBQ Committee Chairs, of the severe weather 
warning that has been issued affecting the North Liberty area. 

 
2. Assigned key holder, Chief Diane Venenga, will immediately move to North Bend 

Elementary School. 
 

3. A message notifying volunteer workers and other Blues & BBQ committee members 



7 
 

shall be broadcast on the volunteer communications network. 
 

4. Blues & BBQ Committee Chair will call Durham School Services On-Call or talk to one 
of the shuttle drivers directly to notify all drivers not to bring any more attendees to the 
park and shift focus to transporting park guests back to the parking lots. 

 
5. An announcement shall be made at the venue stage and attendees will be directed to 

North Bend Elementary School via walking on St. Andrews Blvd or shuttling. 
 

6. Contact shall be made with the Davenport office of the National Weather Service at (563) 
386-3815 for projections on the movement and severity of the storm. 

 
7. The tornado warning sirens in the City shall be activated using the normal activation 

procedures. 
 

8. The “all clear” announcement will be broadcast from the command post over all 
communications frequencies and committee members will circulate the message 
throughout North Bend Elementary School. 

 
9. A Blues & BBQ Committee Chair will give Durham School Services the “all clear” to 

proceed with shuttling normally. 
 

10. The outdoor warning system does not sound an “all clear.” 
 
V. Dangerous Situations, Crisis or  Incidents: 

 

If a dangerous situation, crisis or incident develops which potentially affects participants and attendees 
of Blues & BBQ, the command post and operations supervisor shall be informed of the nature of the 
emergency and local law enforcement and emergency personnel will respond as necessary. 

 
The Operations Supervisor, will immediately notify North Liberty Police Chief Diane Venenga of the 
nature and scope of the emergency. Chief Venenga can be reached through the police department 
(319) 626-5724 or through the volunteer communications network radio. 

 
Chief Venenga will notify the North Liberty Blues & BBQ committee members at her discretion. 

 
Communications Director Nick Bergus or his designee will act as Public Information Officer (PIO) for 
all Blues & BBQ related incidents. All media inquiries and requests for specific information, such as 
the names of those involved, shall be referred to the PIO. Mr. Bergus can be reached by cell (319) 
541-7258, through the communications department (319) 626-5726 or through the volunteer 
communications network radio. 

 
In the event of an emergency declaration, response will be in accordance with the Johnson County 
multi-hazard plan. 

 
Other routine information and announcements concerning the situation, crisis or incident will be 
broadcast on the volunteer communications network. 



8 
 

VI. Phone and Contact Information for Key Personnel: 
 

Command Post Phone: 
 
 

Emergency Communications Center: 
 

Emergency 911  

Non-emergency Number 319-356-6800 

 
Fire Department: 

 
319-626-5717 

Chief Brian Platz  bplatz@northlibertyiowa.org 

 
City Parks & Public Works: 

 
319-626-5720 

 

Guy Goldsmith   
 ggoldsmith@northlibertyiowa.org 

 
Johnson County Sheriff: 

 
319-356-6020 

 

 
Police Department: 

 
319-626-5724 

 

Chief Diana Venenga 
 
Lt. Tyson Landsgard 

 dvenenga@northlibertyiowa.org 
 

aolson@northlibertyiowa.org 

 
Weather Monitoring: 

  

National Weather Service: 563-386-3815  

KCRG First Alert Weather:  http://www.kcrg.com/weather/. 
Meteorologist Joe Winters will also 
be on site from 10 a.m. – 1 p.m. 

Durham School Bus 
Services On-Call: 

319-631-1310  

 
Volunteer Coordinators: 

  

Jean Keeley  

Katie Colony 

 jeanmkeeley@gmail.com  

kcolony@hotmail.com 

mailto:bplatz@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:ggoldsmith@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:dvenenga@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:aolson@northlibertyiowa.org
http://www.kcrg.com/weather/
mailto:jeanmkeeley@gmail.com
mailto:kcolony@hotmail.com


9 
 

Food Vendor Coordinators: 
 

Kevin Crall kcrall@midwestone.com 
 
 

Electrical: 
 

Dean Colony deancolony@alliantenergy.com 
 

Additional North Liberty Blues & BBQ Committee Members: 
 
 

Dave Moore  dmoore@beisserlumber.com 

Allison Bates 

Erek Sittig 

 
Allison_Bates@hillsbank.com 

ereksittig@gmail.com 

Jennie Garner 
 

jgarner@northlibertyiowa.org 

Robbie Deckard 
 

rdeckard@uiccu.org 

Tim Hamer 
 

thamer@northlibertyiowa.org 

Nick Bergus 319-541-7258 nbergus@northlibertyiowa.org 

Jillian Miller 847-703-0253 jlmiller@northlibertyiowa.org 
 

mailto:kcrall@midwestone.com
mailto:deancolony@alliantenergy.com
mailto:dmoore@beisserlumber.com
mailto:Dawn_Lyons@hillsbank.com
mailto:ereksittig@gmail.com
mailto:jgarner@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:rdeckard@uiccu.org
mailto:thamer@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:nbergus@northlibertyiowa.org
mailto:jlmiller@northlibertyiowa.org


North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-97 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-97 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF CENTENNIAL PARK AND 
CITY EQUIPMENT FOR NORTH LIBERTY BLUES & BBQ  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the North Liberty Blues & BBQ planning committee, including City staff, 

has requested the use of Centennial Park;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that That the North Liberty Blues & BBQ 
planning committee is hereby authorized to use Centennial Park for the period from 8:00 
am on Wednesday, July 11 to 12:00 pm on Monday, July 16, 2018:  

 
1. For the purpose of holding the North Liberty Blues & BBQ event. 
 
2. That the use of City equipment in preparation for and during North Liberty Blues 

& BBQ activities is hereby authorized, provided that the equipment is to be 
operated by City employees, either paid or volunteer. 

 
3. The North Liberty Police will provide law enforcement patrol during the event.  

Payment for this coverage is as arranged between the North Liberty Blues & BBQ 
planning committee and the North Liberty Police Department. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Adaptive Traffic Signal 
Agreement 

 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty, Iowa 
Iowa DOT I-80/I-380 System Interchange Reconstruction 
 

Prepared for: 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 
P.O. Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

Submitted by: 

Trafficware Group, Inc. 
522 Gillingham 
Sugar Land, TX 77478 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
 Transmittal Letter 

June 18, 2018 

Scott C. Peterson 
City Attorney, City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 
P.O. Box 77 
North Liberty, IA   52317 
319-626-5767 

RE:  Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 

Dear Mr. Peterson, 

Trafficware appreciates the opportunity to present the following statement of work in response to the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s Adaptive Signal Control Technology I-80/I-380 System Interchange 
Reconstruction.  Trafficware is a corporation that has 40 years of experience designing, engineering, and 
manufacturing the industry’s best traffic control and ITS hardware and software solutions.  Trafficware’s 
headquarters is located in Sugar Land, Texas; all design, manufacturing and support of Trafficware products is 
performed from this location.  Our staff maintains the highest standards in workmanship, performance and 
safety, and will exceed expectations. 

Trafficware understands that a successful adaptive signal control technology (ASCT) deployment requires a 
sound project approach.  Our project team has the experience, capacity, and desire to collaborate with the Iowa 
Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) and the City of North Liberty to provide the right technical solution, 
rapid deployment and ongoing system support to maximize the agency’s investment now and for years into the 
future.  Our project plan outlined in this statement embodies all of the key elements necessary for a successful 
project: 

 Understand the existing environment, 
 Provide industry leading hardware and software solutions, 
 Provide expert personnel with the skills to complete tasks, and  
 Offer a high level of training, support and maintenance. 

Please review this document and its contents.  In addition to this document, Trafficware has provided a Schedule 
of Prices as part of a separate attachment (Cost Proposal to Iowa DOT) 

Above is our address and contact information for our principal place of business; also, please feel free to contact 
Jose Flores with any questions, (808) 599-0486. 

Sincerely, 

 
Jon Newhard 
Trafficware CEO  

Respondent: Jose Flores 
Distribution Manager 
Trafficware Group, Inc. 
522 Gillingham 
Sugar Land, TX 77478 
Phone: (808) 599-0486-7007 
Fax: (281) 240-7238 
joseflores@trafficware.com 
www.trafficware.com 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 3
 Table of Contents 

Executive Summary .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Product Offering ...................................................................................................................................... 6 
SynchroGreen System Software ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Central System and SynchroGreen Integration ................................................................................................ 9 
Trafficware SPM Cloud Service ........................................................................................................................ 9 
Connected Vehicle Module ............................................................................................................................ 10 
POD Detection Technology ............................................................................................................................ 11 
Other System Components and Specifications for North Liberty .................................................................. 13 

Company Background Information ......................................................................................................... 16 
Subcontractors ............................................................................................................................................... 17 

Work Plan .............................................................................................................................................. 18 
Assumptions ................................................................................................................................................... 21 
Project Schedule ............................................................................................................................................. 22 
Training and Documentation ......................................................................................................................... 23 
Hardware Warranty ....................................................................................................................................... 24 
Software Maintenance and Support .............................................................................................................. 25 

Standard License Agreement and Maintenance Contract ................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Project Cost Estimate ............................................................................................................................. 26 
  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 4
 Executive Summary 

SynchroGreen is a real-time adaptive signal control technology (ASCT) from Trafficware that has three 
optimization engines designed to optimize a traffic signal’s cycle length, splits and offsets based on current traffic 
conditions.  SynchroGreen is a software-based ASCT that is compatible with 2070 and (advanced transportation 
controller) ATC-class traffic controllers and does not require hardware in addition to a traffic controller to 
operate the system.  SynchroGreen does not introduce external devices that intercept detection, and as a result, 
does not introduce another point of failure within the traffic signal cabinet.  SynchroGreen benefits include: 

 No proprietary hardware required 
 Does not occupy space in the signal cabinet 
 Does not sacrifice turning/side street traffic 
 Does not require a pedestrian module, and considers pedestrians natively 
 Designed to optimize the entire traffic system 
 Ensures safe and efficient system operation 
 Seamless integration with neighboring SynchroGreen systems (North Liberty) 

Trafficware (formerly Naztec) has 40 years of experience in the traffic control and ITS field and has completed 
adaptive system projects throughout the United States using SynchroGreen since 2011.  Trafficware’s deployed 
systems have ranged from a handful of intersections, to well over 100 intersections in a single system 
deployment.  This project will be accomplished under the supervision of Mr. Marshall Cheek, PE, PTOE.  Mr. 
Cheek specializes in the installation and analysis of the SynchroGreen Real-Time Adaptive Traffic Control System 
and has served as the SynchroGreen Program Manager at Trafficware for seven (7) years.  Using Trafficware’s 
experience on similar adaptive traffic control projects, Trafficware will assure a project that is delivered on-time, 
on-budget and satisfies system requirements.  A summary of major system components included in Trafficware’s 
offering is provided below; all systems include expert installation services: 

 SynchroGreen Central Server Software 
 SynchroGreen Client Applications (Unlimited) 
 Hardware (Dell) Server (Three (3) year warranty) 
 Trafficware SPM Cloud Service for Six (6) Years 
 SynchroGreen (Trafficware) Local Controller Software 
 Trafficware POD Detection (Redundant Detection) (Five (5) year warranty) 
 PODCONNECT Central  
 Disaster Recovery (Backup) for ATMS 
 Comprehensive SynchroGreen and System Training 
 Software Updates and Maintenance (Six (6) years) 
 Connected Vehicle Module for ATMS 

 
Intersections: 

1. Hwy 965 and Scales Bend 
2. Hwy 965 and Pacha 
3. Hwy 965 and Penn 
4. Hwy 965 and Cherry 
5. Hwy 965 and Zeller 
6. Hwy 965 and Westwood 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 5
 

7. Hwy 965 and Fairiew 
8. Hwy 965 and Ashley 
9. Hwy 965 and Forevergreen 
10. Penn and SB I-380 Off (I-380 West)  
11. Penn and NB I-380 Off (I-380 East)  
12. Penn and N. Kansas 
13. Penn and Alexander Way 
14. Penn and N. Jones 

Note that Trafficware has provided our POD system to satisfy the requirements for redundant detection.  
Trafficware will utilize agency-provided controllers and load Local Controller Software on these controllers that 
operate SynchroGreen. 

Iowa DOT’s ASCT RFP includes several requirements, encompassing system functionality, contractual obligations 
and scheduling.  Below is a summary of how Trafficware will satisfy project requirements: 

 Functional Requirements – Trafficware will satisfy functional requirements by delivering the most flexible 
ASCT on the market.  Trafficware will test system functionality before deployment and will verify functionality 
and features after system activation.  Most importantly, Trafficware will ensure that the agency is properly 
trained on the SynchroGreen system and is comfortable operating and applying system features to address 
their traffic operations issues. 

 Contractual Obligations – Trafficware is going on four decades in the traffic control and ITS industry.  Our 
company has successfully completed projects throughout the United States and around the World.  We are 
familiar with various project procurement and delivery methods, as well as contractual obligations.  Fulfilling 
contractual obligations is of utmost importance.  Our word is everything.  Trafficware will assign a Contract 
Manager for this project (Jose Flores) that will assure all obligations are fulfilled and the DOT and City of North 
Liberty have a sustainable adaptive system that meets their needs now and in the future. 

 Project Management – Trafficware will assign an experienced Project Manager to this project.  Marshall 
Cheek currently oversees the deployment of SynchroGreen nationwide and was involved in the early 
development of the system.  Trafficware’s Work Plan includes regular project status meetings, agency 
involvement at critical steps, testing stages and logical break points that assure the delivery of the system. 

 Scheduling – Trafficware has outlined a detailed project schedule that delivers (activates) the adaptive signal 
control system within five (5) months of the notice to proceed.  We are confident that our proposed schedule 
will allow for adequate time to install the system and optimize operations to achieve project objectives.  This 
schedule was developed through years of successful SynchroGreen deployments. 

Our systems also include comprehensive maintenance and support.  Trafficware’s support plan includes six (6) 
years of support and software maintenance, including remote and onsite support, as well as after-hours support 
via phone or email.  Note that five (5) years of product warranty are provided for all Trafficware hardware (POD 
detection). Trafficware believes very strongly that customers should not be abandoned and that long-term 
relationships are built through strong customer service and support. 

SynchroGreen is the fastest growing ASCT in the United States.  It has proven to be reliable and has been applied 
in a variety of traffic conditions and operational environments.  We appreciate the opportunity to submit this 
statement of work and believe very strongly that our solution will provide the best, most cost-effective solution 
for Iowa DOT and the City of North Liberty.  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 6
 Product Offering 

This section presents products included in the City of North Liberty’s project. 

SynchroGreen System Software 
SynchroGreen is a real-time adaptive signal control technology (ASCT) that has three optimization engines 
designed to optimize the cycle length, splits and offsets based on current traffic conditions. The City of North 
Liberty will have licensing for all proposed adaptive intersections (14 intersections).  The SynchroGreen 
algorithm utilizes detection data to estimate the degree of saturation and ultimately the nominal 
green time for each phase.  These estimates are calculated by the SynchroGreen Central Server 
based on detector data obtained from the local controllers.  The SynchroGreen Central Server 
then analyzes these estimates globally for all phases at all intersections and selects the optimal 
values for splits and cycle length duration that are applied in the field.  Lastly, SynchroGreen 
optimizes offsets according to user-defined travel paths based on common platoon patterns and 
known travel times.  Offsets can be adjusted automatically based on the presence of queuing 
and/or platoon arrival distribution.  The user can select the SynchroGreen Balanced, Progression, 
or Critical Movement mode to minimize overall network delay, promote mainline bandwidth, or 
favor critical movements.  Also, the SynchroGreen algorithm accounts for pedestrians implicitly 
and several strategies can be implemented to maintain traffic signal synchronization when 
pedestrian calls are received. 

SynchroGreen Detection Requirements 
SynchroGreen is compatible with non-proprietary vehicle detection technology (i.e., inductive loops, video, etc.), 
and can accommodate many common vehicle detection schemes.  SynchroGreen has been deployed using every 
major video detection, magnetometer and radar technology manufacturer.  Vehicle detection provides the input 
data upon which decisions are made within the SynchroGreen algorithm; detection data is continuously 
recorded by the local intersection traffic controllers.  Vehicle detector placement and configuration are critical.  

SynchroGreen requires stop bar detection, and 
in most cases, advanced detection.  Stop bar 
detectors are typically 20 ft. in length or less in 
order for the detector to identify gaps between 
vehicles.  Stop bar detectors must be placed on 
every lane, on every intersection approach; 
advanced detectors should only be placed on 
mainline through lanes, between 250 ft. and 
500 ft. upstream of the stop bar.  Advanced 
detectors are typically 6 ft. in length.  Advanced 
detection is only necessary when intersection 
spacing is greater than 1000 ft.  Each detector 
(stop bar and advanced) must be placed on a 
separate input channel into the controller.  The 

user can adjust a calibration factor in order to account for varying detector size, position, and sensitivity.  
Trafficware requests 95% accuracy or better on all detection devices used for SynchroGreen. 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 7
 

SynchroGreen Supervisor 
SynchroGreen also includes a powerful triggering system called the SynchroGreen Supervisor.  The 
SynchroGreen Supervisor allows users to program thresholds based on recorded volume, occupancy, green 
utilization, communications status or detector status and uses these thresholds to perform a specified action.  
Actions include functions such as preemption, pattern changes (sequence changes, special function activation, 
etc.), or changing any setting for a SynchroGreen intersection or optimization group.  The SynchroGreen 
Supervisor allows for total system control.  A trigger that occurs at a specified intersection or optimization group 
may be applied to any intersection or optimization group defined throughout the entire SynchroGreen system.  
The SynchroGreen Supervisor is a feature an agency would expect from a modern adaptive traffic signal control 
system and offers a comprehensive mechanism to automate system optimization and minimize agency 
resources. 

SynchroGreen Reporting Capabilities 
SynchroGreen provides a full suite of system reports using Crystal Reports and DevExpress.  The system Reports 
Module currently has over 60 preconfigured reports that include information compiled from data retrieved from 
field devices, as well as from the central system itself.  All reports allow for filtering and have sorting parameters 
to customize the documents and automate data presentation and analysis.  Reports are exportable to .pdf, .xls, 
.doc and .rtf file formats.  This allows for flexibility in document presentation and post-processing capabilities.  
The Reports Module is standard within all new installations.  The following is a partial list of available reports 
within ATMS: 

 Field Alarms  Database Comparison 
 Conflict/MMU Reports  Logins 
 Detector Failure  User Transactions 
 Communications Failure  Turning Movement Report/Graphic 
 Controller Pattern  Volume In/Out Report/Graphic 
 Split History  LOS By Day 
 Preemption  Incident Report 
 Timing Sheets/Settings  Congestion Data 
 Database Printout (Timing Sheet)  Trigger Report 

SynchroGreen supports initiatives proposed in MAP-21 that promote the need for performance management 
on ITS projects.  The Reports Module is designed to allow the user to quickly generate real time and historical 
measures of effectiveness (MOEs).  Tools within the Reports Module, such as level-of-service (LOS) reports with 
volume/capacity (v/c) ratios and turning movement count (TMC) reports assist the agency and provide valuable 
performance data to decision-makers. 

SynchroGreen Alerts and Alarms 
SynchroGreen can be configured to send alerts to users both logged into the system, 
as well as those who are offline and logged out of the system.  When an alert (alarm) 
occurs, users who are logged into the system are notified in real time in the system 
Detail Pane.  The Detail Pane is a heads-up-display for all system alarms, real time 
statistics, user logins, etc.  The Detail Pane is located at the bottom of the 
SynchroGreen Client Application.  Alarms received in the Detail Pane can be sorted or 
hidden based on the type of alarm the user wishes to view.  All alarms received in the 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 8
 Detail Pane are time stamped and provide the location, descriptions/details of the type of alarm and when the 

alarm was activated and deactivated. 

Additionally, Alarm Notifications can be created to notify a specified group of users via e-mail, e-mail to text or 
web services when specified alarms are detected.  The system administrator(s) has the option to program 
automatic notification of these incoming alarms under User Definitions.  The notification can be customized by 
user, alarm type, and time of day. 

SynchroGreen Benefits 
SynchroGreen is designed to be a simple, yet comprehensive, real-time ASCT.  SynchroGreen is easy to install 
and maintain and delivers exceptional operational performance that safely reduces motorist travel time and 
delay.  Important benefits and advantages of the SynchroGreen system are listed in Table 1. 

SynchroGreen is a software-based ASCT that is compatible with 2070 and (advanced transportation controller) 
ATC-class traffic controllers and does not require hardware in addition to a traffic controller to operate the 
system.  SynchroGreen does not introduce external devices that intercept detection and as a result, does not 
introduce another point of failure within the traffic signal cabinet.  These external devices may fail, placing all 
phases in recall; therefore, reducing the efficiency of the signal system and causing more headaches for the 
agency.  SynchroGreen’s integrated approach to adaptive signal control is simple, and allows the agency to focus 
on improving operations, instead of maintaining more hardware. 

SynchroGreen is all-inclusive and does not require additional modules to provide standard system functionality.  
For instance, other adaptive systems require various modules to include pedestrian movements within their 
adaptive algorithm.  Trafficware 
considers pedestrians to be a vital 
part of the transportation system, 
and explicitly considers 
pedestrians within the 
SynchroGreen algorithm. 
SynchroGreen optimizes the 
entire traffic signal system; this 
includes main lines, side-streets 
and turning movements, in 
addition to various modes of 
transportation. 

SynchroGreen utilizes national 
standards such as the National 
Transportation Communications 
for Intelligent Transportation 
Systems Protocol (NTCIP) and 
National Electrical Manufacturers 
Association (NEMA).  Trafficware 
has leveraged these industry standards within SynchroGreen in order to provide the safest, most reliable system 
on the market.  For instance, SynchroGreen utilizes NEMA phasing.  This phasing scheme does not cause erratic 
or apparently random phase service, as can occur with other adaptive systems that do not use NEMA phasing.  

Table 1 - SynchroGreen Benefits 

Feature Benefits 

Software-based 
 Does not require proprietary hardware  
 Does not occupy space in the signal cabinet 
 Results in substantial savings for the agency  

Considers Side 
Streets and 
Pedestrians 

 Does not sacrifice turning/side-street traffic 
 Does not require pedestrian modules 
 Designed to optimize the entire traffic system 

Utilizes National 
Standards (NTCIP, 

NEMA) 

 Ensures compatibility with other infrastructure 
 Ensures user familiarity with system elements  
 Ensures safe and efficient operations 

Designed in the 
United States 

 Designed by traffic industry leaders in the U.S. 
 Allows the agency to contact the developer directly 
 Instills confidence and provides peace of mind  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 9
 

The use of national standards promotes compatibility with other transportation infrastructure, user familiarity, 
and safe and efficient operations of the ASCT. 

Central System and SynchroGreen Integration 
The City of North Liberty is already familiar with Trafficware’s ATMS. This project will build on the fact that ATMS 
is a modular central management platform that serves as the foundation of an effective ITS solution for cities, 
counties and states.  ATMS aggregates all traffic network data into a single repository for a completely 
integrated, real-time, 360-degree view of traffic operations. Featuring high-performance parallel database 
technology, a full suite of data access and management tools, and robust data-mining capabilities, Trafficware’s 
ATMS is a powerful performance and engineering tool.This combined SynchroGreen-ATMS system provides a 
tremendous value to Iowa DOT and the City of North Liberty and will allow them to test functionality that can 
integrate all of their traffic control and ITS infrastructure (not just adaptive signal controllers).  The combined 
system will provide full system monitoring, control, data logging, reporting and more.  Since the City of North 
Liberty already has ATMS, Trafficware will upgrade it to the latest version and ensure integration with 
SynchroGreen. 

 

SynchroGreen and ATMS integration benefits include: 
 Enhanced monitoring and reporting tools that can be utilized by an unlimited number of users. 
 Total system control by adaptive and non-adaptive operational settings. 
 Additional reports and intermediate SynchroGreen calculations (Utilizations and Target Calculations). 
 Enhanced MOEs.  Trafficware is including our SPM Cloud Service for this project.  This will allow the 

agency to obtain performance measures with 0.10 second resolution and also generate valuable 
reports such as Purdue Coordination Diagrams.  All data will be hosted on Trafficware’s Cloud Servers, 
easing the burden for IT staff and ensuring there is always adequate storage to archive data. 

Trafficware SPM Cloud Service 
In 2017, Trafficware released the Signal Performance Measures (SPM) Cloud Service.  The SPM Cloud Service is 
a hosted web service that stores an agency’s high-resolution traffic signal data and allows the agency to reduce 
and process this data in order to generate performance metrics and analytics related to the operation of their 
traffic signals.  Agencies may generate various signal performance reports, including those related to traffic 
counts and traffic signal coordination (Purdue coordination diagrams), as well as metrics such as vehicle 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
0  

approach delay, pedestrian delay, etc.  The SPM Cloud Service has nearly a dozen reports that can be generated 
by the agency. 

The SPM Cloud Service allows agencies that utilize ATMS to export data from ATMS to Trafficware’s Cloud 
Servers.  From there, agencies may login to the Trafficware Cloud website and interact with the data as well as 
generate reports.  The Trafficware Cloud website is secure and allows agencies to share data with decision 
makers and other traffic signal system stakeholders.  Trafficware’s SPM Cloud Service is a first of its kind solution 
that eases the burden associated with data storage, while also providing an easy interface and powerful 
processing tools. 

SPM Cloud Service is provided for all of the City of North Liberty’s intersections included under this project (14 
intersections) for six (6) years. 

 

Connected Vehicle Module 
Trafficware’s Connected Vehicle Module provides controller status data in real time, allowing subscribers to 
process the data and apply it towards connected and automated vehicle applications.  This module was originally 
released in 2014 and is now a fully developed and proven off-the-shelf technology.  The Connected Vehicle 
Module is a standalone application that obtains controller data from ATMS and then pushes the data to the 
agency’s subscriber network.  The Connected Vehicle Module is currently installed by the City of Gainesville. 

The Connected Vehicle Module is highly customizable and allows the agency to define subscriber servers (IP 
addresses, Ports), as well as which traffic signals are to have data published, and what data is to be published.  
All data is provided to subscribers in a non-proprietary Java Script Object Notation (JSON) format that may be 
processed using off-the-shelf software.  Traffic signal data that can be published to connected vehicle subscribers 
includes: 

 Traffic signal state (red, yellow, green) 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

 Pedestrian state (walk, flashing don’t walk) 
 Signal timing (min, max, pedestrian and splits) 
 Detector state (vehicle detectors, bicycle detectors, pedestrian detectors) 
 Events (preemption, transit priority) 
 Coordination State (cycle, offset, split, pattern, sequence, synchronization) 
 Other signal status data may be added at the agency’s request 

Trafficware continually works with developers from the Auto and Tech industries to create new applications that 
leverage real-time traffic signal data.  Applications have included in-vehicle heads up displays that provide count 
down timers to drivers that correspond to when the traffic signal will turn green.  This technology can be 
leveraged not just for driver information but can actually be used to stop the vehicle’s engine when the signal is 
red and start the engine just before the signal turns green.  Additionally, data from Trafficware’s Connected 
Vehicle Module has been used by auto manufacturers to notify drivers when pedestrians are ahead.  This data 
can be readily obtained from pedestrian push button calls at upcoming traffic signals along the vehicle’s route.  
The applications of real time traffic signal data for connected vehicles is endless. 

POD Detection Technology 
Trafficware is proposing our POD system as the redundant source of detection for this project.  While the POD 
will be referred to as the redundant detection technology, it will provide the primary source of SynchroGreen 
data, as this technology has been optimized for SynchroGreen performance.  The Trafficware POD is also 
expected to be used as the primary detection for the City of North Liberty’s SynchroGreen system.  The POD 
Detection system will supplement the City of North Liberty’s existing loop and video detection systems.  The 
existing loop and video detection systems will provide presence (call) and extension detection, while the POD 
detection will be exclusively used for SynchroGreen detection (not call or extension detection).  Descriptions for 
Trafficware’s POD system is provided in the following subsections.  All costs for POD detection are included in 
the Cost Proposal. 

Trafficware POD Detection System 
Trafficware’s POD system is an improvement to traditional inductive loops and video detection, and utilizes a 
wireless magnetometer embedded in the roadway to transmit traffic data.  The POD system has three (3) 
primary components, consisting of a detection unit (POD), an Access Point mounted 
on a pole or mast arm, and a Base Station, located in the traffic signal cabinet that 
relays detection data to the traffic controller.  The POD is a compact unit that utilizes 
a D-Cell (replaceable) Lithium-Ion battery, and transmits traffic data (volume, 
occupancy, etc.) wirelessly via a 900MHz signal to the Access Point. 

One Access Point provides two-way communication between the POD units and the 
Base Station in the traffic signal cabinet and can receive signals from up to 150 PODs 
as far as 700 feet away.  The long-range capability of the POD system ensures that 
no signal repeaters are necessary.  The Access Point relays data to the Base Station 
in the traffic signal cabinet utilizing either a wireless signal (2.4 GHz Zigbee) or can be hardwired using a RS485 
connection. 

The POD base station is located in the traffic signal cabinet and would be connected to the traffic signal 
controllers using an SDLC connection.  The POD base station does not require rack cards, typical of other 
detection systems and can emulate a BIU and provide full 64 channel detection to traffic controllers.  The Base 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
2  

Station may be accessed directly in the cabinet (via Ethernet), or remotely over the agency’s Ethernet network.  
The Base Station hosts a built-in web application, POD Connect, which provides a web-based GUI for system 
configuration, monitoring and control.  The POD Connect application is compatible with all major web browsers 
and may be utilized on smart phones and tablet computers. 

 

Existing Detection Review 
Trafficware will perform a full field evaluation and make recommendations. At a minimum, existing detection 
will serve as the primary detection responsible for providing phase presence (call) and extension detection but 
may also provide an alternate input for SynchroGreen.  Note that the POD detection, while referred to as the 
redundant detection, will be used as the primary source of SynchroGreen detection as it has been optimized for 
this purpose. Any existing detection modifications necessary for SynchroGreen detection shall be performed by 
the agency, and Trafficware will not be responsible for these services. Also note that no ramp detection is 
assumed for this project and is considered outside the scope of this project. 

PODCONNECT Central  
PODCONNECT Central builds upon Trafficware’s flagship central transportation management platform ATMS. 
PODCONNECT Central is a web-based interface which delivers a powerful tool for real time high resolution 
detector data management, monitoring and controlling an agency’s Pod installations.  

PODCONNECT Central is also the foundation for Signal Performance Measures. PODCONNECT Central enables 
the user to pull reports directly from the Pod software, make required changes to detector assignments, and 
perform upgrades as they are made available – putting the power of the most accurate detection system across 
multiple intersections at your fingertips.  

The software graphically displays any number of POD detection systems on a map and provides real time events, 
alarms and the status of individual P0Ds. It enables the agency to collect high resolution data such as 
Volume/Occupancy/Speed reports as well as System Health reports for monitoring the status of their POD 
Detection System. 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

Other System Components and Specifications for North Liberty 
Based on the information gathered from the RFP, required software and hardware components are discussed in 
the following subsections. 

SynchroGreen Central Server Software 
This software is based on Trafficware’s ATMS platform and involves three separate applications: 
Communications Server, Administrator, and SynchroGreen processor.  The Communications Server allows 
SynchroGreen to communicate with local intersections, while the Administrator handles real-time data as well 
as the archiving of this data.  The SynchroGreen processor is responsible for aggregating detection data from 
each intersection, analyzing it for varying trends, and sending new signal timing plans to each of the local 
intersections.  The SynchroGreen Central Server software requires Microsoft SQL in order to archive data.  In the 
event that the SynchroGreen server is deactivated, the software is installed as a Windows Service and is 
configured to start automatically once Windows loads.  This ensures that adaptive operations resume without 
user action in the event of a power failure or other event that may impact the server.  Additionally, if the 
SynchroGreen server loses communications with field controllers, the system will automatically resume 
operations once communications have been restored.  In the event of a critical event, the user can define that 
the adaptive system reverts all traffic controllers to operate under their local time-of-day schedules 
(coordination, free, etc.). 

SynchroGreen Client Application 
This application can be installed on any agency workstation.  Trafficware will provide the agency with an 
unlimited number of Client Applications which allows the agency to access the SynchroGreen Central Server, 
edit settings and monitor performance.  The Client Application can be configured for different clients based on 
their designated clearances and permissions to control and monitor the adaptive signal network.  Furthermore, 
client profiles can be customized based on the user’s preferences and can display different views, status screens, 
and reports.  The SynchroGreen Client Application is important in a mission-critical environment as it allows the 
agency to quickly view and verify that the adaptive system is performing at optimal levels.  The SynchroGreen 
Client Application is a scalable productivity tool that will surely save the agency time and money.  Minimum 
system requirements to operate the SynchroGreen Client Application are listed in Table 2.  The SynchroGreen 
Client Application is capable of notifying users when critical events/alarms occur in the field for over 100 
different situations, such as a controller power or communications failure. 

    



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
4  

SynchroGreen (Trafficware) Local Controller Software 
Trafficware will include our Local Controller Software on all traffic controllers provided as part of this project 
and will activate the SynchroGreen module.  This software is based on Trafficware’s V.76 Patriot controller 
software platform.  This software has been installed at thousands of intersections throughout the United States.  
SynchroGreen and Local Controller Software are NTCIP compliant and are compatible with 2070 and ATC class 
traffic controllers.  Trafficware’s Local Controller Software will appear familiar and intuitive to most traffic signal 
technicians as it is based on nationally accepted standards and industry conventions.  This familiarity will 
significantly reduce the learning curve involved with installing an ASCT. 

Trafficware Local Controller Software has proven to be an effective and cost-efficient way for agencies to 
drastically improve traffic signal operations, simply by installing the software.  Features such as advanced 
coordination logic, multiple preemption recovery modes, flashing yellow arrow (FYA) support and custom I/O 
logic statements allow the flexibility that progressive agencies desire to provide the best service to the motoring 
public.  Trafficware Local Controller Software delivers the following features and much more: 

 16 Vehicle and Pedestrian Phases and 16 Overlaps 
 NTCIP Compliant Database 
 Purdue Hi-Resolution Data Logging 
 Flashing Yellow Arrow (FYA) Support 
 Pedestrian / Vehicle start delay, and Ped Scramble Support 
 16 Preemption Routines 
 Transit Signal Priority & Bus Queue Jump Lane options available 
 IP with secure Port/Host feature, and IP “storm” immunity 
 64-Channels of Detection, with hybrid TS1/TS2 Support 
 Simultaneous Loop Functionality 
 Full Status and Diagnostics Screens 
 Boolean I/O Logic Control Statements 
 Real-Time I/O Status Viewer 
 Re-assignable I/O in any mode 
 Trafficware (Naztec) NTCIP “Plus” Features 

Server and Workstation Requirements 
Minimum server and operator workstation requirements necessary to operate SynchroGreen are provided in 
Table 2.  The SynchroGreen server may be Dell, HP, or IBM models.  The installed server must have access to the 
agency’s traffic signal network and must be capable of accessing the internet.  Trafficware requests that the 
server, once installed, have low-medium security settings.  Note that the price of a server to operate 
SynchroGreen is included in our Schedule of Prices (Cost Proposal) and will be optimized for SynchroGreen 
performance.  Workstations to operate SynchroGreen will be provided by the agency.  If additional servers (or 
higher performance server components) are required to satisfy agency or IT requirements, beyond those 
required for SynchroGreen, additional charges may apply.  All servers will include rack rail kits, multiple Ethernet 
ports, and RAID configurations.  A server rack is not included in this offering.  Note that physical mounting of 
server equipment must be performed by the agency’s IT staff, as well as initial Windows network configuration 
(IP address and other network settings).  Specific server requirements can be provided upon request. 

 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

Table 2 - Server and Workstation Requirements 
Minimum Server Requirements Minimum Workstation Requirements 

OS: Windows Server 2012 or later OS: Windows XP/Vista/7/8 
Memory: 32 GB Memory: 4 GB (XP), 2 GB (Vista/7/8) 
Storage: Minimum 1TB Storage: 5GB 
Software: MS .NET Framework 4.5 (or later) Software: MS .NET Framework 4.0 (XP) 

MS IIS 7.0/8.0 (or later) MS .NET Framework 4.5 (Vista/7/8) 
MS SQL Server 2012 or later  

  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
6  

Company Background Information 
Trafficware is an engineering and manufacturing company that provides traffic management hardware and 
software solutions to meet the needs of transportation agencies globally.  Since 1979, Trafficware (formerly 
Naztec) has been dedicated to the traffic industry, providing uncompromised quality and service.  We are known 
worldwide for Synchro Studio, the traffic 
engineering standard for signal timing and 
optimization, as well as ATMS, Trafficware’s 
advanced traffic management system (ATMS).  
We have also leveraged our expertise in Synchro, 
ATMS and traffic control hardware products to 
create the nation’s fastest growing real time 
adaptive traffic control system, SynchroGreen.  
As Trafficware completes its fourth decade, the 
company looks forward to continued product 
development, service to its customers, and 
growth for the company. 

Trafficware offers the most extensive product 
catalog in the traffic control industry, and includes: traffic controllers, cabinets and accessories, detection, 
central management systems, adaptive systems, emergency response systems, traffic simulation software and 
more.  A summary of technical services is below. 

Table 3 - Summary of Trafficware Technical Capabilities 

 NEMA, 2070, ATC Controllers  Central Management Systems (ATMS) 
 NEMA, 33x, ITS Cabinets  Adaptive Systems (SynchroGreen) 
 Cabinet Accessories  Transit Priority Systems (TSP.now) 
 CMUs/MMUs  Emergency Response (Emergency.now) 
 Wireless Magnetometer Detection (POD)  Connected Vehicle Technology 
 Signal Equipment (Signal Heads/Flashers)  Custom Software Development 
 Traffic Controller Software/Firmware  Traffic Simulation (Synchro/SimTraffic) 

Trafficware currently employs a full staff of over 150 professionals responsible for engineering, research, 
software development and manufacturing.  Our team has earned Trafficware a reputation of consistency and 
reliability for our state-of-the-art products and services.  With over 90,000 square feet of combined 
manufacturing and engineering office space, our headquarters location in Sugar Land, Texas, has sufficient 
resources to handle any traffic control or ITS project. 

Unique among traffic control and ITS manufacturers in the industry, Trafficware continues to conduct all design, 
manufacturing and servicing of its products within the United States.  All Trafficware products are Made in 
America and are held to the highest standards for quality and customer support. 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

 

Subcontractors 
Trafficware will supplement our onsite support during and after SynchroGreen deployment using our distributor, 
Traffic and Transportation Products, Ltd (TATPL) out of Port Byron, Illinois.  TATPL is an authorized distributor of 
Trafficware products in Iowa and are factory-trained to support all Trafficware products.  TATPL personnel have 
over 30 years of experience in the traffic control and ITS field and distribute and support a variety of products, 
including traffic signal cabinets (NEMA/33x), traffic controllers, detection systems, as well as central 
management and adaptive signal systems.  Contact information for TATPL is below. 
 
Traffic and Transportation Products, Ltd. 
Jim Conner 
23107 Route 2/92 
Port Byron, IL 61275 
Main: (309)-523-3425 
Fax: (309)-523-3317 
jim@tatpl-traffic.com 
  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
8  

Work Plan 
The following subsections outline Trafficware’s proposed Work Plan and Schedule.  The Work Plan and Schedule 
have been developed through our team’s vast experience installing adaptive signal control and enterprise traffic 
signal systems throughout the United States. 

Task 0: Project Management:  Our team will schedule a project kickoff meeting with project stakeholders.  During 
this meeting, project scope, schedule, personnel and overall expectations will be reviewed.  Additional meetings 
will be conducted prior to system implementation and SynchroGreen activation, as well as after the system is 
operational (post implementation).  Trafficware will also conduct bi-weekly meetings via conference call or in 
person with Iowa DOT and City of North Liberty staff to provide progress updates.  Trafficware will also submit 
our proposed Test Plan and allow the agencies to review and comment.  The Post Implementation meeting will 
allow agencies to comment on system operations and performance.  The Post Implementation meeting will also 
allow Iowa DOT and the City to present any “punch list items”. 

Task 0 Deliverables 
 Kickoff Meeting 
 Updated Project Scope and Schedule 
 Test Plan 
 Post Implementation Meeting 

Task 1: Systems Assessment:  Our team will inventory the traffic control infrastructure in detail and provide a 
final assessment of system elements.  This task is anticipated to last approximately two days and includes field 
activities along project corridors.  This assessment will be used to inspect systems and proposed detection 
placement.  Trafficware will also inspect all traffic signal cabinets and existing signal timing sheets.  Trafficware 
will also perform an initial assessment of communications infrastructure and the area where the server will be 
located. 

Task 1 Deliverables 
 Traffic Signal Inventory/Assessment 
 Existing Signal Timing Uploads and/or Printouts (City of North Liberty) 

Task 2: Database Conversion:  During the traffic signal controller upgrade process, our team will use current 
signal timing uploads/printouts and will convert existing timing plans to the Trafficware V.76 database format.  
Our team will ensure that basic signal timing, coordination settings, phase sequencing, preemption, detection, 
auxiliary connections, etc., are maintained during the database conversion process.  All converted databases will 
be presented to the City for approval before they are downloaded to traffic controllers. 

Task 2 Deliverables 
 Converted Databases (V.76 Trafficware format) 
 Approve Converted Databases (City of North Liberty) 

Task 3: Programming:  A Trafficware Traffic Engineer will test and program all SynchroGreen central server and 
intersection databases in a virtual environment before system deployment.  The ability to test databases before 
deployment expedites the actual field deployment process.  Trafficware will present recommended settings to 
Iowa DOT and/or the City prior to system activation and will allow them to provide comments. 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 1
9 

Task 3 Deliverables 
 SynchroGreen Central Server Settings 
 SynchroGreen Local Intersection Settings 

Task 4: Server Procurement and Configuration:  Trafficware will purchase a server that satisfies SynchroGreen 
requirements and will install SynchroGreen software on the server at our Sugar land, Texas engineering center.  
Once the software is installed, Trafficware technicians will configure preliminary system settings.  After server 
configuration is completed, Trafficware will ship the server to the City.  It is assumed that the City will physically 
install the server and configure the server to operate on the traffic signal network. 

Task 4 Deliverables 
 Procure SynchroGreen Server 
 Configure Initial SynchroGreen Settings 
 Ship SynchroGreen Server to City of North Liberty 

 Install Server in City facilities (City of North Liberty) 

Task 5: Detection Procurement and Installation: Trafficware will provide the Trafficware POD system as the 
redundant detection technology on this project.  Trafficware will provide all POD devices, access points, base 
stations, antennas and applicable accessories to allow for optimal SynchroGreen detection.  Trafficware will also 
work with our subcontractors (TATPL) to install the POD detection system.  Note that installation services are 
provided for the POD detection system but will not include addressing any preexisting cabinet issues.  Installation 
services include physically mounting all equipment, as well as system configuration to support SynchroGreen 
operations.  Trafficware will not perform any modifications or upgrades to existing detection systems. 

Task 5 Deliverables 
 Procure and Install Trafficware POD Detection 

Task 6: Traffic Signal Controller Installation:  Trafficware may modify existing traffic signal controller databases 
for the City’s existing 980 ATC controllers.  If these modifications are necessary, Trafficware will work with the 
agency demonstrate and document any required setting changes and will then be onsite as any modified 
controller databases are downloaded.  It is expected that if any modifications are necessary, any requested 
database changes will be minor and will solely be changed in order to support SynchroGreen operations. 

Additionally, Trafficware may request that the agency update the V.76 controller software currently installed on 
980 ATC controllers in the field.  If updates are required, Trafficware or our subcontractors will assist the agency.  
It is expected that any software updates will take less than five (5) minutes per traffic controller.  Trafficware 
will also require that all intersections have SynchroGreen licenses installed and enabled. 

Task 6 Deliverables 
 Modify 980 ATC Controller Databases (If necessary) 
 Update V.76 Controller Software and Enable SynchroGreen Licenses (If necessary) 

Task 7: System Activation and Adjustments:  Once the SynchroGreen server and controller software have been 
successfully installed, Trafficware will be able to activate the SynchroGreen system.  During system activation, 
Trafficware staff will be onsite.  Our team will meet with the City to discuss system activation and will note any 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
0  

requests or concerns.  Our team will request turn on verification from the agency at this meeting.  Once 
activation has been granted, our team will activate the system and place staff at various points throughout the 
project corridor to monitor traffic operations.  Once the system has been successfully activated, our team will 
begin adjusting SynchroGreen settings based on observations and measurements from system detection.  The 
adjustment period may last up to two (2) weeks.  Once initial adjustments are completed, our team will notify 
the agency. 

Task 7 Deliverables 
 SynchroGreen Activation 
 SynchroGreen Adjustments Documentation 

Task 8: Training:  Formal training will be provided once the SynchroGreen system is online.  Trafficware will 
provide six (6) days of system training for this project, including training for Trafficware Local Controller 
Software, SynchroGreen/ATMS, as well as the Trafficware POD system (see Training and Documentation). 

Task 8 Deliverables 
 Trafficware Controller Training and Documentation 
 SynchroGreen/ATMS Training and Documentation 
 Trafficware POD Training and Documentation 

Task 9: System Verification:  Our team will be onsite during system verification and will work with Iowa DOT and 
the City to complete Trafficware’s Test Plan.  If discrepancies are discovered during system verification and 
testing, our team will provide comments, recommendations and/or actions to remedy the discrepancy. 

Task 9 Deliverables 
 Onsite Verification and Test Plan Procedures 

Task 10: System Acceptance:  After successfully completing the Test Plan and verification, the system will 
officially be accepted and Iowa DOT and/or the City will provide written acceptance of SynchroGreen. 

Task 10 Deliverables 
 System Acceptance (Iowa DOT/City of North Liberty) 
 Maintenance and Warranty Documentation 

  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
1 

Assumptions 
This section outlines a list of assumptions that were used in the preparation of this proposal. 

 Workstations, laptops and tablet computers necessary to operate the system will be provided by the 
agency. 

 Trafficware will not provide primary detection at proposed or reconstructed intersections.  Trafficware 
will provide POD detection as a redundant detection technology. 

 Any existing detection modifications necessary for SynchroGreen detection shall be performed by the 
agency, and Trafficware will not be responsible for these services. 

 The agency will provide signal layouts in enough detail to construct any intersection graphics provided 
as part of this project.  This includes signal phase-direction, detector locations, etc. 

 The agency will provide existing signal timing sheets. 
 The agency will furnish VPN/RDP applications such that SynchroGreen and ATMS can be accessed 

remotely during system installation.  It is also assumed that this VPN/RDP connection will remain open 
during the warranty/support/maintenance period in order for our Team to provide expedited service. 

 The agency will furnish and install all required communications equipment necessary to provide 
Ethernet connectivity to field devices and the server. 

 The agency will repair any preexisting traffic signal cabinet issues, including any issues involving existing 
detection (vehicle and pedestrian). 

 All requests for review or acceptance by the agency, will be received, approved, or rejected (with 
justification) within five (5) business days of submittal. 

 Any requirements (mandatory or desired) that are noted as partially satisfied, or does not satisfy, shall 
be removed from any system requirements and associated verification testing. 

 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
2 Project Schedule 

 

 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
3 

Training and Documentation 
Trafficware will provide six (6) days of system training for this project, including training for Trafficware Local 
Controller Software, SynchroGreen, ATMS and POD.  As part of this project, the City is eligible for eight (8) hours of 
free follow up training annually (while under a support and maintenance agreement).  Follow-up training will focus 
on updated features and system capabilities.  Follow-up training may be requested once per calendar year after 
the first year of the software maintenance period while the system is under a maintenance agreement.  A detailed 
list of topics covered during the cumulative six (6) day training course is as follows. 

Day 1 – Local Controller Software 
 General Overview 
 Basic Controller Software Operational Features 
 Interface and Navigation 
 Database Initialization 
 Detection 
 Channel Outputs 

Day 2 – Local Controller Software (Continued) 
 Unit Parameters and Sequences 
 Scheduling 
 Basic (Backup) Coordination 
 Hands-on Exercises 
 Preemption 
 Troubleshooting Controller Software 

Day 3 – ATMS  
 Basic Interface Overview 
 Intersection Setup 
 Database Management 
 Real Time Scan Screens 
 Intersection/Control Groups 
 Definitions Module/Administration 
 Reports Module 
 Troubleshooting Interface and Connectivity 

Day 4 – SynchroGreen Basics 
 SynchroGreen Algorithm Overview 
 Intersection Controller Software/Interface Overview 
 Intersection Software Setup 
 Central Server Setup 
 Critical System Settings 

Day 5 – SynchroGreen (Continued) 
 Coordination Adjustments 
 SynchroGreen & Time-Space Diagrams 
 Green Utilization Measurements and Adjustments 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
4 

 Accessing the System (Local and Remote) 
 System Activation Tips and Recommendations 
 System Backups 
 Troubleshooting 
 Submitting Trouble Tickets 
 Requesting Support and Upgrades 

Day 6 – Trafficware POD 
 POD Placement and Design 
 POD Installation and System Components 
 POD Configuration and POD Connect 
 POD Troubleshooting 

Training is intended for engineers, system operators, technicians and system administrators.  Our team is able to 
customize any training curriculum based on the agency’s preferences; agencies are encouraged to provide input 
regarding training material and topics.  Our team will provide all training materials in electronic and hardcopy 
format.  Training materials include system manuals, presentation documents, and quick reference guides. 

Documentation  
A summary of documentation/training manuals is described below: 

 SynchroGreen Operations Manual 
 SynchroGreen & ATMS Central Software/Client Software Manuals 
 V.76 (Patriot) Local Controller Software Manual 
 POD Manuals and Technical Guides 
 Software License Documents 
 Warranty Documents 

Instructors 

Table 4 - Training Course General Information 
Course Instructor(s) Duration 

Local Controller Software Rich Wallace or Al Bonificio 16 Hours 
ATMS Rich Wallace or Al Bonificio 8 Hours 
SynchroGreen Marshall Cheek or Tom Gerrity 16 Hours 
Trafficware POD Rich Wallace or Charlie Whitfield 8 Hours 

Hardware Warranty  
Trafficware is providing a six (6) year warranty and maintenance program on all Trafficware hardware procured as 
part of this project (five (5) years for Trafficware POD).  This warranty includes the repair or replacement of 
hardware items that are deemed defective in material workmanship.  Defective hardware items are eligible for 
repair or replacement under this warranty.  Hardware items will first be addressed remotely and then onsite.  Items 
will be promptly repaired or replaced and will receive priority shipping.  Beyond the initial six (6) years of hardware 
warranty, actual costs apply for all hardware repairs and replacement.  A three (3) year manufacturer (Dell or HP) 
warranty will be provided on the server procured as part of this project.  Note that the warranty applies to hardware 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
5 

products only, and all software-related items are addressed under the Support and Maintenance agreement (see 
following subsections). 

Software Maintenance and Support 
Trafficware is committed to providing Iowa DOT and the City of North Liberty with excellent customer service and 
support both during and after project deployment.  Trafficware is offing a six (6) year support and maintenance 
program for this project.  During the support and maintenance period, all software updates shall be provided to 
the agency.  Typically, Trafficware releases SynchroGreen updates twice per year.  Technical support is also included 
as part of the support and maintenance program.  Requests for technical support will be initially addressed by 
telephone or remote internet connection within 48 hours of the receipt of the request.  During the maintenance 
period, any standard support requests requiring onsite assistance from Trafficware will be addressed within 48 
hours of the request for onsite assistance.  Beyond the initial six (6) years of software maintenance and support, 
the agency may purchase an extended support agreement through Trafficware.  The extended support would 
include all Trafficware software updates pertaining to the SynchroGreen/ATMS system and would also include 
remote and onsite support. Trafficware’s support contact information and standard hours of operation are: 

Trafficware Group, Inc. 
522 Gillingham 
Sugar Land, TX 77478 
1-800-952-7285 
Office Hours: 7 AM – 7 PM CT, Mon-Fri 
support@trafficware.zendesk.com 

Customers may call Trafficware’s support hotline after hours and leave a message.  Our support team is continually 
monitoring these messages and a Trafficware support team member will be notified of the request for 
support/service.  Additionally, customers may email support@trafficware.zendesk.com for all support 
requests/inquiries.  This system will automatically enter a ticket into our trouble ticket system and notify 
appropriate Trafficware support team members.  



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
6 

Project Cost Estimate 
Iowa DOT I-80/I-380 System Interchange Reconstruction  

Highway 965 ASCT ATSS Engineer's Estimate - North Liberty (SynchroGreen) 
 

 
Highway 965 ASCT ATSS Engineer's Estimate - North Liberty (SynchroGreen)  
Note: Estimate does NOT include intersection/backbone fiber optic communications cost (supplied by Iowa DOT)  
Revised January 3, 2018 
 

  Item Unit Unit Cost Quantity Total Cost Revision Notes 
        

Hwy 965 and: 
     

1 Scales Bend 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $30,000 1 $30,000  Increased pod quantity for redundancy 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

2 Pacha 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

3 Penn 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $30,000 1 $30,000  Increased pod quantity for redundancy 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

4 Cherry 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

5 Zeller 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

6 Westwood 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
7 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

7 Fairview 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

8 Ashley 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

9 Forevergreen 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $30,000 1 $30,000 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

10 Penn and SB I-380 Off (I-380 West) 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

11 Penn and NB I-380 Off (I-380 East) 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000 

 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

12 Penn and N. Kansas 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $30,000 1 $30,000  Increased pod quantity for redundancy 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  Increased per revised vendor quote 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

13 Penn and Alexander Way 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 Increased pod quantity for redundancy. 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $30,000 1 $30,000  Possible color camera IP analog if not  

current FLIR cameras. 



 

Adaptive Signal Control Technology for North Liberty 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Pa
ge

 2
8 

 
 

Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000  
 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

14 Penn and N. Jones 
     

 
SynchroGreen Adaptive System Upgrade (Incl Training) Each $19,643  1 $19,643 

 

 
Supply Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $24,719 1 $24,719 

 

 
Install Redundant Detector System (Pods) Intersection $8,000 1 $8,000 

 

 
Connected Vehicle System Upgrade (Incl Training) Intersection $6,786 1 $6,786 

 

 
Supply and Install Backup Server Capability Intersection $3,714 1 $3,714  Added to enhance functionality 

 
Supply and Install Cable, Connectors, Incidentals Each $2,000 1 $2,000 

 

       
 

SUBTOTAL A 
   

$934,473 
 

 
10% Contingency 

   
$93,447 

 

 
SUBTOTAL B 

   
$1,027,920 

 

       
 

SynchroGreen Adaptive Maintenance Program (14 int) 
Year 

 
$13,508 6 $81,048 

 

       
 

TOTAL Deployment and 6 Years of Maintenance 
   

$1,108,968 
 

 



SERVICES AGREEMENT 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PRODUCTS, LIMITED AND 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 
 
 
 THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made at North Liberty, Iowa, 
on this _____ day of ____________, 2018 by and between the CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, a 
municipal corporation (“City”) and TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PRODUCTS, 
LIMITED, an Illinois business incorporated in Delaware ("TATPL"), who agree as follows: 
 

1. Services.   
 

a. TATPL, the City and the Iowa Department of Transportation desire to 
install, operate and maintain new traffic control devices in North Liberty, using adaptive signal 
control technology (the “Project”). 
 

b. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, TATPL 
shall provide to the reasonable satisfaction of City the services set forth in the Trafficware’s 
entitled “Statement of Work” dated June 18, 2018 (hereafter, the “Statement of Work”), which 
incorporated herein by this reference.  TATPL represents that it is experienced in performing the 
work and will follow generally accepted professional standards in performance of the work.  All 
services provided shall conform to all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and to 
the professional standards and practices.  The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
shall control over any terms and conditions in the Statement of Work to the contrary. 
  
 2. Compensation, Fees and Term. 
 
  a. Compensation for Services is outlined in the Project Cost Estimate, pp. 
26-28, Statement of Work (hereafter, the “Fee Schedule”) which incorporated herein by this 
reference.  Payment to TATPL shall be based on delivery and/or installation of completed items, 
not as project as a whole. 
 
  b. The referenced Compensation for Services shall include all costs, 
including, but not limited to, all clerical, administrative, overhead, insurance, reproduction, 
telephone, travel, auto rental, subsistence and all related expenses.     
 
 3. Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, 
TATPL shall be an independent contractor and not an employee of City.  City shall have the right 
to control TATPL only insofar as the result of TATPL’s services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement.  City shall not have the right to control the means by which TATPL accomplishes 
services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  TATPL shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish 
all facilities, materials and equipment that may be required for furnishing services pursuant to 
this Agreement. 
 



2 

 4. Consultant Not Agent.  Except as City may specify in writing, TATPL shall have 
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an agent.  
TATPL shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind City to any obligation whatsoever.   
 
 5. Conflicts of Interest.  TATPL agrees that it shall not make, participate in the 
making, or in any way attempt to use its position as a consultant to influence any decision of City 
in which TATPL knows or has reason to know that TATPL, its officers, partners, or employees 
have a financial interest.  
  
 6. Insurance. 
 

 a. TATPL shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, comprehensive 
general liability insurance or commercial general liability insurance written on an occurrence 
basis providing for a combined single limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, death 
and property damage. 
 

 b. TATPL will determine its own needs in procurement of insurance to cover 
liabilities other than as stated above.  

 
 7. Attorneys' Fees.  If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or 
interpret the terms of this Agreement, the parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees 
and costs. 
 
 8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 

9. Integration.  This Agreement, as set out in Paragraph 1, constitutes the entire 
agreement of the parties.  No other agreement, oral or written, pertaining to the work to be 
performed under this Agreement shall be of any force or effect unless it is in writing and signed 
by both parties.   

 
10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the 

enforcement of these terms and conditions shall be reserved to the City and TATPL.  Nothing 
contained in the agreement shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any 
third person.  It is the express intent of the City and TATPL that any such person or entity, other 
then the City or TATPL, receiving services or benefits under this agreement shall be deemed an 
incidental beneficiary. 
 
 11. Notice.  Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices required under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and delivered personally or by certified mail, postage prepaid, to 
each party at the address listed below.  Either party may change the notice address by notifying 
the other party in writing.  Notices shall be sent by U.S. Mail.  Notices shall be deemed received 
upon receipt of the return-receipt from the certified US Mail.   
 



3 

"TATPL"      “CITY” 
 
Traffic and Transportation Products, Ltd.  City of North Liberty 
23107 Route 2 and 92     3 Quail Creek Circle, P.O. Box 77 
Port Byron, IL 61275     North Liberty, Iowa 52317 
Attn:  Jim Conner, Project Manager   Attn:  Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
 
IN WITNESS of this Agreement, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the year and 
day first above written. 
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION   CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
PRODUCTS, LIMITED    
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 
Jim Conner      Terry L. Donahue, Mayor 
Project Manager   

Attest: ____________________________ 
Tracey Mulcahey, Clerk 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-99 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-99 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION PRODUCTS, 
LIMITED AND THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City approved the Adaptive Traffic Signal Project with the Iowa 

Department of Transportation on May 8, 2018;  
 
WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation uses Traffic and Transportation 

Products, Limited for adaptive signal control technology; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for services provided by Traffic and 
Transportation Products, Limited. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and Traffic and Transportation Products, Limited is approved for 
adaptive signal control technology. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Forevergreen Road 
Project 

 











North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-98 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-98 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD 
PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Temporary Easement 

Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of property for the Forevergreen Road Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $3,020.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Temporary Easement Purchase 

Agreement for the Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Water Rates 
 



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY19

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Number of Accounts 8,598                8,671                8,844                9,021              9,202              9,386              9,573              9,765              9,960               10,159            10,363            10,570            10,781           
  Gallons Sold 351,617,000    378,000,000    385,560,000    393,271,200  401,136,624  409,159,356  417,342,544  425,689,394  434,203,182  442,887,246  451,744,991  460,779,891  469,995,489 
  Proposed Rate Increase 5.00% 5.00% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Base Rate 14.83$              15.57$              16.12$              16.68$             17.26$             17.87$             18.49$             19.14$             19.14$              19.14$             19.14$             19.14$             19.14$            
  Rate/1000 Gallons 5.99$                6.29$                6.51$                6.74$               6.97$               7.22$               7.47$               7.73$               7.73$                7.73$               7.73$               7.73$               7.73$              

Revenues
  Water Sales 3,050,981$      3,318,938$      3,503,803$      3,698,965$     3,904,997$     4,122,505$     4,352,129$     4,594,542$     4,686,433$      4,780,162$     4,875,765$     4,973,280$     5,072,746$    
  Sales Tax 196,302$          197,850$          210,228$          221,938$         234,300$         247,350$         261,128$         275,673$         281,186$          286,810$         292,546$         298,397$         304,365$        
  Connection Fees/Permits 95,478$            80,000$            108,000$          108,000$         108,000$         108,000$         108,000$         108,000$         108,000$          108,000$         108,000$         108,000$         108,000$        
  Use of Money 821$                 400$                 400$                 400$                400$                400$                400$                400$                400$                 400$                400$                400$                400$               
  Miscellaneous 8,325$              50,000$            500$                 500$                500$                500$                500$                500$                500$                 500$                500$                500$                500$               
  Transfers ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                
  Accounts Receivable/Payable (27,303)$           ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                
Total Water Utility Revenues 3,324,604$      3,647,188$      3,822,931$      4,029,803$     4,248,197$     4,478,756$     4,722,157$     4,979,115$     5,076,519$      5,175,872$     5,277,211$     5,380,577$     5,486,011$    

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 14.68% 2.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 508,253$          555,000$          661,561$          694,639$         729,371$         765,840$         804,132$         844,338$         886,555$          930,883$         977,427$         1,026,298$     1,077,613$    
  Services & Commodities 1,299,344$      1,205,795$      1,227,565$      1,288,943$     1,353,390$     1,421,060$     1,492,113$     1,566,719$     1,645,055$      1,727,307$     1,813,673$     1,904,356$     1,999,574$    
  Capital 17$                    ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 109,877$          176,000$          237,000$          125,000$         75,000$           75,000$           40,000$           75,000$           75,000$            75,000$           75,000$           75,000$           75,000$          
    Capital Reserve 143,209$          300,000$          80,000$            230,000$         200,000$         80,000$           215,000$         130,000$         130,000$          130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         130,000$        
    Revenue Debt 533,470$          809,656$          969,285$          1,072,735$     1,765,915$     1,564,115$     1,540,528$     1,311,678$     1,770,708$      1,772,848$     1,653,760$     1,654,160$     1,654,020$    
    GO Debt 391,215$          388,738$          390,900$          393,350$         320,600$         319,800$         243,900$         249,400$         249,700$          249,900$         ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                
    Billing & Accounting 321,329$          356,855$          320,546$          288,491$         259,642$         233,678$         210,310$         218,723$         227,472$          236,570$         246,033$         255,875$         266,110$        
    Upcoming Projects
      (1) Plant Expansion & Well(s) ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 359,884$        
      (2) Water Tower ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                

Total Water Utility Expenditures 3,306,714$      3,792,044$      3,886,857$      4,093,159$     4,703,919$     4,459,493$     4,545,982$     4,395,857$     4,984,489$      5,122,508$     4,895,893$     5,045,689$     5,562,201$    

Net Change in Fund Balance 17,890$            (144,856)$        (63,926)$           (63,356)$          (455,722)$       19,263$           176,174$         583,258$         92,031$            53,364$           381,318$         334,888$         (76,190)$         

Beginning Fund Balance 1,590,281$      1,608,171$      1,463,315$      1,399,389$     1,336,033$     880,311$         899,574$         1,075,749$     1,659,007$      1,751,037$     1,804,401$     2,185,720$     2,520,608$    
Ending Fund Balance 1,608,171$      1,463,315$      1,399,389$      1,336,033$     880,311$         899,574$         1,075,749$     1,659,007$     1,751,037$      1,804,401$     2,185,720$     2,520,608$     2,444,418$    

% Reserved 48.63% 38.59% 36.00% 32.64% 18.71% 20.17% 23.66% 37.74% 35.13% 35.22% 44.64% 49.96% 43.95%

Total Personnel Costs 508,253$          555,000$          661,561$          694,639$         729,371$         765,840$         804,132$         844,338$         886,555$          930,883$         977,427$         1,026,298$     1,077,613$    
% of Water Utility Expenditures 15.37% 14.64% 17.02% 16.97% 15.51% 17.17% 17.69% 19.21% 17.79% 18.17% 19.96% 20.34% 19.37%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 2.84                   2.33                   2.00                   1.91                1.23                1.47                1.57                1.96                1.44                  1.42                1.50                1.48                1.20               
  Required Coverage 1.20                   1.20                   1.20                   1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                  1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20               
  Desired Coverage 1.25                   1.25                   1.25                   1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                  1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25               
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 1.64                   1.13                   0.80                   0.71                0.03                0.27                0.37                0.76                0.24                  0.22                0.30                0.28                (0.00)              

Water Utility Budget & Forecast

Proposed rate increase = 3.5%.

The proposed rate increase is 1.5% 
less than what was presented at the
budget sessions in February.

Water sales for FY 18 are on track 
as budgeted.

Water meter sale revenue is higher 
than anticipated.

Personnel Services budgeted 
expense adjusted downward; 
Service and Commodities remain 
the same.  

Changes in personnel throughout 
the year resulted in lower costs.

FY21 & FY22 projected fund 
balances are concerning and 
should be monitored.

Debt service coverage ‐ 
throughout the entire model ‐ 
remains adequate and at or 
above the required 1.20.  Special 
attention should be paid to FY21 
& FY29 to ensure compliance.

Utility Forecasts 180514 Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY19

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
3,000               26.81$             28.15$        29.14$       30.16$            31.21$            32.30$            33.43$       34.60$        34.60$         34.60$         34.60$         34.60$         34.60$        
5,000               38.79$             40.73$        42.16$       43.63$            45.16$            46.74$            48.37$       50.07$        50.07$         50.07$         50.07$         50.07$         50.07$        
8,000               56.76$             59.60$        61.68$       63.84$            66.08$            68.39$            70.78$       73.26$        73.26$         73.26$         73.26$         73.26$         73.26$        
11,000             74.73$             78.47$        81.21$       84.06$            87.00$            90.04$            93.19$       96.46$        96.46$         96.46$         96.46$         96.46$         96.46$        
15,000             98.69$             103.62$      107.25$     111.01$          114.89$          118.91$          123.07$     127.38$    127.38$       127.38$       127.38$       127.38$       127.38$      

3,000               1.34$           0.99$          1.02$              1.06$              1.09$              1.13$          1.17$          ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
5,000               1.94$           1.43$          1.48$              1.53$              1.58$              1.64$          1.69$          ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
8,000               2.84$           2.09$          2.16$              2.23$              2.31$              2.39$          2.48$          ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
11,000             3.74$           2.75$          2.84$              2.94$              3.04$              3.15$          3.26$          ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
15,000             4.93$           3.63$          3.75$              3.89$              4.02$              4.16$          4.31$          ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

3,000               16.09$        11.82$       12.24$            12.67$            13.11$            13.57$       14.04$        ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
5,000               23.27$        17.11$       17.71$            18.32$            18.97$            19.63$       20.32$        ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
8,000               34.06$        25.03$       25.91$            26.81$            27.75$            28.72$       29.73$        ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

11,000             44.84$        32.96$       34.11$            35.30$            36.54$            37.82$       39.14$        ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
15,000             59.21$        43.52$       45.05$            46.62$            48.25$            49.94$       51.69$        ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

Water Utility Budget & Forecast

Ad
di
tio

na
l 

W
at
er
 

Co
st
/M

on
th

Ad
di
tio

na
l 

W
at
er
 

Co
st
/Y
ea
r

Co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
in
 G
al
lo
ns

Water Rate Increase Analysis

Monthly Water Costs Based on Usage

 $‐

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Fund Balance Projection

Utility Forecasts 180514 Water Utility Rate Analysis



City of North Liberty – 2018   Ordinance Number 2018-05 
Page: 1 

Ordinance No. 2018-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 92.02, ENTITLED "RATES 
FOR SERVICE," OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF NORTH LIBERTY 
BY ADOPTING A NEW SECTION 92.02 TO INCREASE THE CHARGES 
FOR WATER USED 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT  Chapter 92.02 “Rates for Service," of the Municipal Code of 
North Liberty be, and the same is hereby amended, by repealing Section 92.02 therein, and 
enacting in lieu thereof new sections to be codified the same to read as follows: 
 

92.02 RATES FOR SERVICE.   
 

Gallons Used Per Month Rate 
First 1,000 gallons $ 16.12 
All over 1,000 gallons $   6.51 

 
Service to industrial establishments may be by contract, if the City finds such an 
arrangement to be in the best interest of the City. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
 
First reading on May 22, 2018. 
Second reading June 12, 2018. 
Third and final reading ________________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
___________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR    
 
 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2018   Ordinance Number 2018-05 
Page: 2 

ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2018-05 in The Leader on the _____ day of 
_________________, 2018.   
 
________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 



 

 
 

Sewer Rates 
 



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY19

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast
FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Number of Accounts 8,321                8,394                8,562                8,733             8,908             9,086             9,268             9,453             9,642               9,835             10,032           10,232           10,437          
  Gallons Sold 348,633,000    370,000,000    377,400,000    384,948,000  392,646,960  400,499,899  408,509,897  416,680,095  425,013,697   433,513,971  442,184,250  451,027,935  460,048,494 
  Proposed Rate Increase 5.00% 5.00% 3.00% 3.00% 2.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Base Rate 28.60$              30.03$              30.93$              31.86$            32.66$            33.31$            33.97$            34.65$            34.65$              34.65$            34.65$            34.65$            34.65$           
  Rate/1000 Gallons 5.15$                5.41$                5.57$                5.74$              5.88$              6.00$              6.12$              6.24$              6.24$                6.24$              6.24$              6.24$              6.24$             

Revenues
  Waste Water Sales 4,090,629$      4,435,577$      4,660,017$      4,895,814$     5,118,574$     5,325,364$     5,540,509$     5,764,346$     5,879,632$      5,997,225$     6,117,170$     6,239,513$     6,364,303$    
  Sales Tax ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               
  Connection Fees/Permits 27,825$            25,000$            25,000$            25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$            25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$         
  Use of Money 781$                  300$                  300$                  300$                300$                300$                300$                300$                300$                  300$                300$                300$                300$               
  Miscellaneous 1,837$              6,000$              6,000$              6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$              6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$           
  Transfers ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               
  Accounts Receivable/Payable (41,829)$           ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               
Total Water Utility Revenues 4,079,243$      4,466,877$      4,691,317$      4,927,114$     5,149,874$     5,356,664$     5,571,809$     5,795,646$     5,910,932$      6,028,525$     6,148,470$     6,270,813$     6,395,603$    

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 27.67% 12.87% 15.00% 10.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 583,280$         629,149$         773,502$         889,527$        978,480$        1,027,404$     1,078,774$     1,132,713$     1,189,349$      1,248,816$     1,311,257$     1,376,820$     1,445,661$    
  Services & Commodities 682,352$         994,775$         967,475$         1,112,596$     1,223,856$     1,285,049$     1,349,301$     1,416,766$     1,487,604$      1,561,985$     1,640,084$     1,722,088$     1,808,193$    
  Capital ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 94,417$            40,000$            87,000$            40,000$          60,000$          35,000$          90,000$          50,000$          50,000$            50,000$          50,000$          50,000$          50,000$         
    Capital Reserve 215,500$         205,500$         485,500$         210,500$        375,000$        375,000$        375,000$        375,000$        375,000$         375,000$        375,000$        375,000$        375,000$       
    Revenue Debt 1,231,196$      1,823,913$      1,828,789$      1,830,214$     1,831,120$     1,830,989$     1,830,476$     1,829,585$     1,830,416$      1,900,967$     1,829,985$     1,829,466$     1,834,938$    
    GO Debt 334,200$         370,145$         476,400$         472,350$        473,200$        468,800$        469,300$        469,600$        469,650$         469,450$        139,050$        ‐$                ‐$               
    Billing & Accounting 321,329$         356,855$         320,546$         288,491$        259,642$        233,678$        210,310$        218,723$        227,472$         236,570$        246,033$        255,875$        266,110$       
    Upcoming Projects
      (1) Sewer Lines & Generator ‐$                  50,000$            288,020$        291,861$        288,119$        290,934$        293,160$        294,694$         288,598$        289,072$        288,997$        288,997$       
      (2) Mid/Long Term Projects ‐$                  ‐$                  206,550$        206,675$        206,638$        206,438$        206,438$        206,438$         206,438$        206,438$        206,438$        206,438$       

Total Waste Water Utility Expenditures 3,462,274$      4,420,337$      4,989,212$      5,338,248$     5,699,834$     5,750,677$     5,900,533$     5,991,984$     6,130,623$      6,337,824$     6,086,918$     6,104,683$     6,275,335$    

Net Change in Fund Balance 616,969$         46,540$            (297,895)$       (411,134)$      (549,960)$      (394,012)$      (328,724)$      (196,339)$      (219,690)$       (309,298)$      61,551$          166,130$        120,268$       

Beginning Fund Balance 3,088,139$      3,705,108$      3,751,648$      3,453,754$     3,042,620$     2,492,660$     2,098,647$     1,769,923$     1,573,584$      1,353,894$     1,044,596$     1,106,147$     1,272,277$    
Ending Fund Balance 3,705,108$      3,751,648$      3,453,754$      3,042,620$     2,492,660$     2,098,647$     1,769,923$     1,573,584$     1,353,894$      1,044,596$     1,106,147$     1,272,277$     1,392,545$    

% Reserved 107.01% 84.87% 69.22% 57.00% 43.73% 36.49% 30.00% 26.26% 22.08% 16.48% 18.17% 20.84% 22.19%

Total Personnel Costs 583,280$         629,149$         773,502$         889,527$        978,480$        1,027,404$     1,078,774$     1,132,713$     1,189,349$      1,248,816$     1,311,257$     1,376,820$     1,445,661$    
% of Waste Water Utility Expenditures 16.85% 14.23% 15.50% 16.66% 17.17% 17.87% 18.28% 18.90% 19.40% 19.70% 21.54% 22.55% 23.04%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 2.29                   1.52                   1.39                   1.38                1.39                1.43                1.48                1.53                1.53                  1.47                1.51                1.50                1.71               
  Required Coverage 1.20                   1.20                   1.20                   1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20                  1.20                1.20                1.20                1.20               
  Desired Coverage 1.25                   1.25                   1.25                   1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25                  1.25                1.25                1.25                1.25               
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 1.09                  0.32                  0.19                  0.18               0.19               0.23               0.28               0.33               0.33                 0.27               0.31               0.30               0.51              

Proposed rate increase = 3%.

The proposed rate increase is 1% less 
than what was presented at the 
budget sessions in February.

WW sales for FY 18 are on track as 
budgeted.

Debt service coverage ‐ throughout 
the entire model ‐ remains strong 
and above the required 1.20.

FY26 & FY27 projected fund 
balances are concerning and 
should be monitored.

Personnel Services and Services 
and Commodities budgeted 
expense adjusted downward.  

Changes in personnel throughout 
the year resulted in lower costs.

Operational expenses coming in 
lower than originally budgeted.

Utility Forecasts 180514 Waste Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY19

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
3,000               38.90$        40.85$       42.07$             43.33$            44.42$            45.30$       46.21$       47.13$         47.13$         47.13$         47.13$         47.13$         47.13$        
5,000               49.20$        51.66$       53.21$             54.81$            56.18$            57.30$       58.45$       59.61$         59.61$         59.61$         59.61$         59.61$         59.61$        
8,000               64.65$        67.88$       69.92$             72.02$            73.82$            75.29$       76.80$       78.34$         78.34$         78.34$         78.34$         78.34$         78.34$        
11,000             80.10$        84.11$       86.63$             89.23$            91.46$            93.29$       95.15$       97.06$         97.06$         97.06$         97.06$         97.06$         97.06$        
15,000             100.70$      105.74$     108.91$           112.17$          114.98$          117.28$     119.62$    122.02$       122.02$       122.02$       122.02$       122.02$       122.02$      

3,000               1.94$          1.23$               1.26$              1.08$              0.89$          0.91$         0.92$           ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
5,000               2.46$          1.55$               1.60$              1.37$              1.12$          1.15$         1.17$           ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
8,000               3.23$          2.04$               2.10$              1.80$              1.48$          1.51$         1.54$           ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
11,000             4.01$          2.52$               2.60$              2.23$              1.83$          1.87$         1.90$           ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
15,000             5.04$          3.17$               3.27$              2.80$              2.30$          2.35$         2.39$           ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

3,000               23.34$       14.70$             15.15$            13.00$            10.66$       10.87$       11.09$         ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
5,000               29.52$       18.60$             19.16$            16.44$            13.48$       13.75$       14.03$         ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
8,000               38.79$       24.44$             25.17$            21.60$            17.72$       18.07$       18.43$         ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

11,000             48.06$       30.28$             31.19$            26.77$            21.95$       22.39$       22.84$         ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            
15,000             60.42$       38.06$             39.21$            33.65$            27.59$       28.15$       28.71$         ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$            

Ad
di
tio

na
l 

W
at
er
 

Co
st
/M

on
th

Ad
di
tio

na
l 

W
at
er
 

Co
st
/Y
ea
r

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast

Waste Water Rate Increase Analysis

Monthly Waste Water Costs Based on Usage

Co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
in
 G
al
lo
ns

 $‐

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Fund Balance Projection

Utility Forecasts 180514 Waste Water Utility Rate Analysis



City of North Liberty – 2018   Ordinance Number 2018-06 
Page: 1 

Ordinance No. 2018-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 99.02 ENTITLED "RATE," 
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF NORTH LIBERTY BY ADOPTING A 
NEW SECTION 99.02 TO INCREASE THE CHARGES FOR SANITARY 
SEWER SERVICES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT  Chapter 99.02 “Rate," of the Municipal Code of North Liberty 
be, and the same is hereby amended, by repealing Section 99.02 therein, and enacting in 
lieu thereof new sections to be codified the same to read as follows: 
 

99.02 RATE.   
 

Gallons Used Per Month Rate 
First 1,000 gallons $ 30.93 
All over 1,000 gallons $   5.57 

 
Service to industrial establishments may be by contract, if the City finds such an 
arrangement to be in the best interest of the City. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on May 22, 2018. 
Second reading June 12, 2018. 
Third and final reading ________________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
___________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR    
 
 
 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2018   Ordinance Number 2018-06 
Page: 2 

ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2018-06 in The Leader on the _____ day of 
_________________, 2018.   
 
________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
           



 

 
 

Dog Park Land Purchase 
Agreement 

 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-100 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-100 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE DOG PARK PROJECT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement for the 

acquisition of property for the Dog Park Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $200,000.00 as a part of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the Dog 

Park Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Corporate Boundary Line 
Adjustment 

 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-101 
Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2018-101 
 

RESOLUTION ADJUSTING CORPORATE BOUNDARY LINE 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA AND 
JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as “City”) lies 

within Johnson County, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as “County”);  
 

WHEREAS, the centerline of a certain part of North Liberty Road between Dubuque 
Street and Penn Street has previously been established as the corporate boundary line 
between the City and the County, which is depicted by the blue line in the attached Exhibit 
A;  
 

WHEREAS, a recently completed reconstruction of a portion of North Liberty Road 
included a shift in the right-of-way and road alignment, and consequently the centerline of 
North Liberty Road; and 

 
WHEREAS, by separate agreement regarding the North Liberty Road Improvements 

Phase 2 Project approved by the City on March 14, 2017 and the County on March 23, 2017, 
the City and the County have agreed to adjust the corporate boundary line from the 
centerline of the subject portion of North Liberty Road to the right-of-way line on the north 
and east sides of the realigned North Liberty Road, which is depicted by the red line in the 
attached Exhibit A.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, and the Board of Supervisors of Johnson County, Iowa hereby approve the 
establishment of a new corporate boundary line between the City and the County for a 
certain portion of North Liberty Road, as set out in Exhibit B, specifically described as the 
northerly and easterly right-of-way lines of North Liberty Road, as modified by quit claim 
deed recorded in Book 5736, Page 835, and warranty deeds recorded in Book 5479, Page 
466, and Book 5609, Page 808, located in the E ½ of Section 7, the W ½ of Section 8, and the 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-101 
Page 2 
 

NE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 17, except the south 500 feet thereof, all in Township 80 North, 
Range 6 West of the 5th P.M. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all of the property in the E ½ of Section 7, the W ½ 

of Section 8, and the NE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 17, except the south 500 feet thereof, all 
in Township 80 North, Range 6 West of the 5th P.M., lying easterly and northerly of the new 
boundary line shall be unincorporated territory of Johnson County, and all of such property 
lying westerly and southerly of the new boundary line shall be within the incorporated 
territory of the City of North Liberty. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City and the County shall immediately submit 

this joint resolution to the City Development Board and the Johnson County Auditor upon 
execution and, further, shall comply with directives of the City Development Board and the 
Johnson County Auditor in order to finalize and make official the establishment of this new 
corporate boundary line. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018. 
 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
JOHNSON COUNTY: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Mike Carberry, Chairperson 
Johnson County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
By:___________________________ 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-101 
Page 3 
 

      Travis Weipert, Auditor 
 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-101 
Page 4 
 

 
 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



North Liberty Community Library Board of Trustees Meeting  
City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Drive, North Liberty 

6:30pm, June 18, 2018  

Meeting called to order at 6:30 PM 

Present: Present: Bud Forbes, Jessica Beck; Marcia Ziemer; Chris Mangrich; Doug 
Neale 
Not present: John Henk 
Library Director; Jennie Garner 
 

I. Additions/Changes to the Agenda: Discussion Director Evaluations and Board 
Self Evaluations will be added to Old Business on the agenda 

II. Public Comment: none 

III. Approval of Minutes 
May: Marcia Ziemer moved and Jessica Beck seconded. Approved 

IV. Reports 
a. Staff introduction – Janet Lubben, Technology Services Librarian. Janet 
is seeing an increase in technology related questions / assistance with 
patrons. There have also been more “one on one” technology sessions 
provided for patrons.  Four Launchpads were purchased for patron use. 
These devices have preloaded stories and kid games on them and are 
comparable to the AWE stations. At this time the Launchpads are for in-
house use only. Janet will work with Melanie to create PR to get the word 
out about these devices. Janet provides the non-book statistics for the library 
and has seen a very high use for the four computer stations (over 300 uses 
each month) and suggests a “computer lab” housing up to fifteen desktop 
computers. While laptops and Ipads are good, a computer lab could provide 
a long term solution to heavy demand.          
b. Budget – 

Personnel Services: 94.79  
Services & Commodities: 88.35  
Total Library Services for:  93.35 D. Average this time of year: 92 percent 

c. Friends 
Friends are working on bylaws that might include additional officers, the 
possible removal of term limits, and the creation of an annual meeting 
which could offer a forum to thank its benefactors. Funding requests 
include library seasonal summer staff person to work 10-12 hours per  



Page 2  North Liberty Community Library Board of Trustees Meeting  
City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Drive, North Liberty 

6:30pm, June 18, 2018  

week. The estimated cost for this is about $1500 for eight weeks 
(June/July). RIPL funding for Jennifer to attend conference. Fund raising 
events include a record setting Book Sale ($1760 plus 11 book bags sold).  
 

d. Director— 
Three new employees all started in June and have been training  

Mitch DeFauw is in place as Public Services Librarian  
Hanna Martin and Julia Wehr are new library assistants  

Community Survey (included in packet)  
Released on City Website, library website, social media  
Set up iPad to take in library and printed paper copies  

Will mail to area residents on request. Link: 
https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/2018/06/11/help-make-the-
librarybetter-with-a-quick-survey/  

    Another great library video produced by our Communications team  
https://vimeo.com/273898907  

Children’s and Teen area redesign  
Finding that space is being used very differently than when we first 
expanded the library 
Adding additional kids’ activities and baby play area  
Added new seating for tweens near Youth & Teen Services desk 
Ordered new chairs and tables for teen lounge  
Adding new chairs throughout kids/teen area  
Seeking quotes for face out picture book shelving   

 New collection items  
Adding giant sized books for checkout  
Book club kits, Curriculum kits and story time kits   
Will look at shelving for east wall in FY19 to see how we can 
showcase all these non-traditional circulating items  
Cake pans and additional DVD shelving   

As cake pans are circulating less, we will be weeding the 
collection a great deal  

https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/2018/06/11/help-make-the-library-better-with-a-quick-survey/
https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/2018/06/11/help-make-the-library-better-with-a-quick-survey/
https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/2018/06/11/help-make-the-library-better-with-a-quick-survey/
https://www.northlibertyiowa.org/2018/06/11/help-make-the-library-better-with-a-quick-survey/
https://vimeo.com/273898907
https://vimeo.com/273898907


Page 3      North Liberty Community Library Board of Trustees Meeting  
City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Drive, North Liberty 

6:30pm, June 18, 2018  

 
          (Con’t) New Collection Items 

Looking to add new shelving units in the cake pan area for 
overflow of DVDs and will just have one wall for cake pans  

 New signage  
Getting quotes for new signage for mobile book carts   
Shifting the teen sign over to improve security camera view 
and better mark teen area  

 
e. Staff reports – no questions 

V. Policy Review  
Board By-Laws   Chris Mangrich moved and seconded by Marcia Ziemer. 
Approved. 
Internet &Technology Policy     Ziemer moved and Beck seconded. Approved.     

VI.      Old Business    Director Evaluations. Recommendation by Ziemer to suspend.     
        Seconded by Beck. Approved 
       Board Evaluations. Continue quarterly reports of Planning for 
Results.  
VII.  New Business   None 

VIII. Other Business 

a. Board training – orientation in August 

 Adjourn.  Moved Beck, seconded by Ziemer. Adjourned at 
7:25 PM.       Next meeting date: August 20, 2018, 6:30pm 
 

 



 

City of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

Monthly Report Summarization 
 

May 31, 2018 
 
This report provides a summarization of the budget status after the end of May 2018.  At the end of 
the month, the City was 91.67% through the budget year.  The red line indicates the percentage 
where the budget area is and green/blue line is the percentage of the budget year.  Any particular 
area falling approximately 10% below or above the percentage of the budget year will be explained 
below.  The data includes the amended budget. 
 
Revenues:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted revenues as of 
May 31, 2018:    
 

 
 
 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

General Fund Road Use Tax Water Utility Wastewater Utility Storm Water Utility



• This chart represents the historical view at the end of May.  The City has received the 
majority of the property tax revenue for the fiscal year with April’s tax revenues. With 
the receipt of these revenues, the General Fund is right in line with the budget 
projection.  

• Road Use Tax revenues are ahead of the projection for the fiscal year.  
• Stormwater Utility funds are above budgeted due to SRF proceed receipts for the Soil 

Quality Restoration Project.  
 
Overall revenues year to date are $45,498,690.76, 78.21% of the budgeted amount.  
 
Expenditures:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted expenditures 
as of May 31, 2018:    
 

 
 

• Culture and Recreation expenses are approximately 15% below expected expenditures.  
Budgeted transfers will bring expenditures in line with the expectations at the end of the 
fiscal year.  

• Community and Economic Development expenditures to date are almost 20% below 
expected.  Budgeted projected expenses have not been expended.   

• The Road Use Tax fund has a significant amount of budgeted year end transfers. Expenses 
are more than 40% behind budget projections. A surplus will exist at the end of the year.  

• Water and Sanitary Sewer Utility expenditures are lower than expected. Transfers at the 
end of the fiscal year will impact the percentages.  

• Stormwater expenditures will be brought into line with expected expenditures through 
transfers made at the end of the fiscal year.  

 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%



Year to date total expenditures are $39,854,509.76 or 55.53% of the projected budget amounts. 
This amount is significantly below the 91.67% of the fiscal year completed but will catch up with 
transfers and unexpected expenditures. Revenues to date exceed expenditures to date for the year.  
Overall, spending is lower than expected and receipts are higher than expected. 
 
Following is the Treasurer’s Report for May.  The General Fund Balance is comprised of more than 
just the 010 General Fund. For accounting purposes of the budget and reporting, other funds such 
as Hotel/Motel Tax, Library Capital, Fire Capital and others are incorporated into the General total.  
The General Fund for operating expenses has a fund balance of $ 5,554,536. The other funds in the 
total shown here are obligated to specific departments or types of activities.  The other funds are 
separated out to keep those funds obligated for future specific expenditures.    

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

May 31, 2018 

FUNDS BALANCE 
FORWARD REVENUE  EXPENSE BALANCE 

ENDING 

 
05/01/2018 

  
05/31/2018 

          

GENERAL 7,225,232.70 583,861.29 -926,752.50 6,882,341.49 

          

SPECIAL REVENUE 9,249,755.00 477,436.42 -72,931.10 9,654,260.32 

          

DEBT SERVICE  753,136.49 29,295.97 0.00 782,432.46 

          

CAPITAL PROJECTS -3,273,826.40 10.52 -883,003.06 -4,156,818.94 

          

WATER ENTERPRISE 2,310,747.37 3,509,740.66 -554,512.20 5,265,975.83 

          

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 6,529,901.64 568,451.22 -332,041.74 6,766,311.12 

          

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 258,266.20 17,929.27 -13,258.96 262,936.51 

          

TOTAL 23,053,213.00 5,186,725.35 -2,782,499.56 25,457,438.79 
 
 
If you have questions regarding this document or would like additional information, please contact 
Tracey Mulcahey.  


	Event Name: North Liberty Blues & BBQ
	Organization Name: North Liberty Community Betterment
	Applicant Name: Jillian Miller
	Date of Birth: 6/28/1988
	Address: 520 W. Cherry Street
	Contact Persons During the Event: Jillian Miller
	Telephone: 847-703-0253
	Email: jlmiller@northlibertyiowa.org
	Dates of Event 1: July 13, 2018
	Dates of Event 2: July 14, 2018
	Dates of Event 3: 
	Start Time: 5:30 p.m.
	End Time: 9:30 p.m.
	Start Time_2: 10 a.m.
	End Time_2: 11 p.m.
	Start Time_3: 
	End Time_3: 
	Location of Event: Centennial Park
	Number of Guests: 15,000
	Will there be amplified music or other noise: Yes
	If yes please specify: 
	Will alcohol be served or sold: There will be live music from 1 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. with music on the house speakers starting at 10 a.m.
	undefined: Yes_2
	If yes please specify_2: 
	Provide verification of liquor license if applicable: Craft beer will be available on site in an enclosed beverage garden from a third-party vendor.
	Will food or beverages be served or sold: Yes_3
	If yes please specify_3: 
	Provide verification of permits or licenses if applicable: A variety of food will be available from a variety of third-party vendors.
	Is the closing of any street sidewalk trail or other public property requested: Yes_4
	If yes please specify_4: We're requesting use of Centennial Park, but the Saturday event is free and open to the public. On Saturday, we would like to close St. Andrews Dr between North Bend Elementary and Centennial Park to allow safer pedestrian access from lots at North Bend and UICCU starting at 10 a.m.
	How and when will area residents be notified of the event 1: 
	How and when will area residents be notified of the event 2: We advertise the event widely with print, radio, posters, billboards, yard signs, digital and word of mouth advertising.
	Will liability insurance coverage be obtained for the event: Yes_5
	Will any signage be used for the event: Yes_6
	Please list the names and addresses of any additional event sponsors 1: Numerous sponsors including:  The City of North Liberty, Veridian Credit Union, Adam Schechinger State Farm, University of Iowa Community Credit Union, Junge Ford North Liberty, 
	Please list the names and addresses of any additional event sponsors 2: South Slope Cooperative Communications, JCI Johnson County, MidWestOne Bank, North Liberty Optimists, Shive-Hattery, AW Welt, FOX Engineering, Great Western Bank, JM Swank, 
	Please list the names and addresses of any additional event sponsors 3: Rockwell Collins, Mike Bails at Urban Acres Real Estate, US Bank, Hills Bank, Casey’s General Store, Port O Jonny,  KCRG, KZIA, Locals Love Us, and the North Liberty Leader. 
	Description of Event  Please be specific include details about the purpose of the event expected attendance the event schedule provisions for cleanup public notice advertising media coverage etc: The 12th annual community event offers free live music, attractions for children, including a petting zoo, inflatable rides, and an arts-inspired activity tent, barbecue for sale, and a beverage garden. The free Saturday community event will be proceeded on Friday with The Pig & Pint Prelude, a 300 or less ticketed fund raiser with music, food and drink under the large tent.North Liberty Community Betterment is a 501c3 group.North Liberty Blues & BBQ is free and open to the public.
	Describe in detail the security for the event: The North Liberty Police Department has offered its assistance, and we will use Johnson County Sheriff Reserves is additional law enforcement if needed. We also have a committee on site to provide additional security.
	means they plan to do so 1: 
	means they plan to do so 2: 
	a Severe Thunderstorm Warning or Tornado Warning in the area your event is occurring 1: Attached.
	a Severe Thunderstorm Warning or Tornado Warning in the area your event is occurring 2: 
	a Severe Thunderstorm Warning or Tornado Warning in the area your event is occurring 3: 
	a Severe Thunderstorm Warning or Tornado Warning in the area your event is occurring 4: 
	notification will be used at the venue and who will make the announcement 1: Attached. 
	notification will be used at the venue and who will make the announcement 2: 
	the area and seek shelter 1: Attached.
	the area and seek shelter 2: 
	and the event will be suspended until the storm threat is passed 1: Attached.
	and the event will be suspended until the storm threat is passed 2: 
	event 1: The North Liberty Fire Department will be on site for the duration of the event to provide EMS.
	event 2: 
	Date: June 6, 2018


